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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Pursuant to Chapter 36 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC’)
regulates First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) in relation to the listing of its shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The SFC, The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (i)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (iij) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TR EE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2011, the financial service sector remained very
competitive. The stock market was volatile. Our Group has continued
in stock brokerage business, margin financing, corporate finance
services, wealth management services, stock information and research
services.

In January of the year under review, the Group made two mortgage
loans with two banks for the land and building, and an investment
property in Central. It purchased these properties in the fourth quarter
in 2010 with an aggregate of over HK$78 million in considerations.
This better strategic location of the Group for main management
would secure the Group for a better working environment in alliance
with various potential strategic partners in the same locations. In
addition, the Group also achieved rental savings instead of having two
offices in which the Group used to operating before removal. It is
believed to be for a long term benefit for the Group as a whole. In
March 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary execute an agreement with
Guangdong Brightzone (formerly known “Zhuhai Brightzone”) for a
platform to Wealth Alliance to sell and market a stock investment
analysis software and software packages developed and owned by
the Group. In December 2011, the Group successfully issued
800,000,000 transferrable unlisted warrants to six placees. The
expiration period is three years at a subscription price of HK$0.124. It
represents a discount to the closing price as at year end date.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total turnover of approximately HK$12.7 million in
2011. Compared with the amount of approximately HK$49.0 million
last year, there was a decrease of approximately HK$36.3 million or
741%. The decrease in turnover was primarily caused by poor
performance in the stock market during the reporting period. And the
tightened policy of the PRC government on regulating the securities
and investment consultancy sector of the PRC in which the Group’s
operates, which is relatively less favourable to foreign enterprise’s
participation.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TR EE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Results of the Group (continued)

Loss for the year amounted to approximately HK$39.4 million
compared with loss of approximately HK$218.6 million for the
corresponding year. The loss has substantially narrowed. The decrease
in loss for the year was due to absence of impairments written off to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
under review. These impairments include intangible assets, goodwill,
other intangible assets and trade receivables. Although there was an
increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment due to the
above acquisition of properties in Central and the resultant increase in
finance costs arising from the mortgages relating to these properties,
its effect is materially counteracted by the effect from decrease in the
impairments, employee benefits expenses and other operating
expenses. The decrease in employee benefits expenses resulted
mainly from absence of the share-based compensation expenses in
the year under review. Share of losses of associates has also
narrowed. The results have been improved by an increase in other
gains and other income, deriving from disposing of certain fixed
assets, subsidiaries, sale of software to an associate, appreciation in
value of an investment property and advertising service income.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group is in healthy liquidity and financial position. As at 31
December 2011, the shareholders’ fund of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$137.0 million. As at 31 December 2011, the
Group’s cash and bank balances were approximately HK$ 46.3 million
(2010: approximately HK$131.9 million) of which approximately HK$6.7
million were held on behalf of clients in trust and segregated
accounts. Taking into account of the amount of liquid assets in hand,
the Board is of the view that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from its
normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flows generated from business transactions locally. As at the
end of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged
foreign exchange exposure or interest rate mismatch.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TR EE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

As at the end of 2011, the total number of the Company’s shares
have been increased to 4,028,964,120 shares, after issue of
200,000,000 consideration shares as partial consideration for the
acquisition of GoHi on 16 November 2007 pursuant to the
Agreements as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 22 October
2007. The Company have also issued an aggregate of 800,000,000
unlisted but transferrable warrants. The exercise in full of these
warrants would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 800,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company.

The Group had a secured bank borrowing, albeit repayable on
demand, of approximately HK$36.3 milion as at the end of 2011
according to its rescheduled repayment date reaching over five years.
The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$57.1 milion to a bank in respect of general banking facility
granted to a subsidiary. However, no overdraft was drawn under this
facility at the balance sheet date.

Stock Information and Research Services

The total fee income of the stock information and research services
unit has significantly decreased to approximately HK$ 5.5 million for
the year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$25.4 million or
of approximately 82.2% compared with that of last year; this unit
reported an operating loss before income tax expenses of
approximately HK$18.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$136.3 million or of approximately 88.0% compared
with that of last year. It was mainly attributable to tightened policy of
the PRC government on regulating the securities and investment
consultancy sector of the PRC in which the Group operated, which is
relatively less favourable to foreign enterprise’s participation.

Brokerage and Trading Platform

Total turnover of this unit recorded was approximately HK$ 7.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011, compared with approximately
HK$ 14.4 milion for the same period last year. The unit recorded a
loss of approximately HK$3.4 milion compared with a loss of
approximately HK$2.2 million for the corresponding period. The loss
has increased. It was due to rather poor performance of stock market
during the year under review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TR EE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Wealth Management Services

Since the market is poor, being affected by external factors, the total
fee income of the wealth management division significantly decreased
to approximately HK$0.3 milion for the year from approximately
HK$1.5 million for the same period last year. This unit recorded
remained at a loss of approximately HK$0.2 million for the year as in
last year.

Corporate Finance Services
This segment remained inactive during the year under review.

Property Investments

A new income stream derived from leasing one of the properties
acquired during the year under review. The income amounted to
approximately HK$1.0 million for the year. This unit recorded a profit
of approximately HK$1.3 million for the year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank borrowings secured
by charges over the Group’s entire land and building and investment
property and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (2010:
Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2010: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

There was no other material acquisition/disposal which would have
been required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules for the
year under review. At present, the Group has no concrete plans for
any material investments.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TR EE

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a workforce of 114
employees (2010: 393). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to about HK$16.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: approximately HK$55.2 million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an annual basis
and commensurate with the industry pay level. The remuneration
package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical benefits and
discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a share option
scheme as an added incentive for its employees. During the year, the
Company had not granted any new share option to any director or
employee.

OUTLOOK

In the coming year, with uncertainty about the stock market, the
Group is optimistic. We will continue with our solid foundation in
securities trade industry and related business. Subsequent to issue of
warrants, the Group has successfully refreshed the general mandate
to issue, allot and deal with up to over 965 milion new shares upon
independent shareholders’ approval in an extraordinary general
meeting convened in February 2012. The refreshment will provide the
Group with flexibility to raise additional fund as general working capital
or to capture fund raising opportunities, without interest payment
obligation, as well as potential business opportunities which may arise
from time to time. The Group is actively looking at several other
projects which are of potentials in contributing profits and value to the
shareholders. In the meantime, the Group has successfully been
granted license of futures trading from the regulatory body to enhance
our business potential in derivative trading in addition to the present
stock brokerage business. Coupled with our connectivity in China and
business relationship with our precious clients, and our current healthy
liquidity and financial position, the Group is positioned to deliver better
results in the future.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board

Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EFREREEBALAEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Wang Wenming, aged 49, is the Director and Chief Executive
Officer of BZEFFHZMRORINABMRAR (First China Securities
Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) (“First China Shenzhen”), one of
China’s leading stock information services companies. Prior to that,
Mr Wang had established () *IIMEFEZREBR AT (Shenzhen
Guangxin Investment Co., Ltd) which is an investment company, (i) %
J'E BRAEFMTAR AR (Shenzhen Wealth Aliance Networking Co.,
Ltd) which is an I.T. network company, and (i) J#&3JI1E X8 XL 1EIE
BBRAF (Shenzhen Sky Picture Communications Co., Ltd) which is
an audio and video production company. Since the appointment of
Mr. Wang Wenming as the Director of First China Shenzhen, under
his leadership, First China Shenzhen has achieved growing revenue,
profits, and industry recognition. As a result, First China Shenzhen
was selected by the Futian District Government of the Shenzhen
Municipality as one of “Shenzhen Futian District's Top 100 Taxpaying
Enterprises” in 2003 and 2004 with annual tax payment of over
RMB10,000,000. Due to Mr Wang's excellent capability and great
contribution to the Shenzhen Municipality, he has been elected as a
Congressman of the 4 term of the People’s Congress for Shenzhen
Municipality, and Deputy Chairman of both the Enterprise Alliance
Association and the Entrepreneur Association of Futian District of
Shenzhen Municipality, China since 2005. In 2006, Mr Wang was also
selected by the Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee as “Entrepreneur
that Supports Party’s Development”.

Mr Lee Yiu Sun, aged 54, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and joined the Group in May 2000. Mr Lee has over 20
years of experience in the securities and financial service sector.
Starting from 1998, Mr Lee is the committee member of Election
Committee of Hong Kong for Legislative Council and Chief Executive.
Since 2008, Mr Lee is the member of Financial Services Advisory
Committee of Trade Development Council. From 2009, Mr Lee is
being the committee member of Guangdong’s Association for
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong & Macao,
the Perm. Honorary President of Hong Kong Securities Association.
Mr Lee was formerly the Managing Director of Celestial Asia Securities
Holdings Limited. Mr Lee was a Council Member of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1997 to 1999 and a Committee
Member of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society from 1994
to 1999. Mr Lee was also the member of the Banking and Financial
Services Training Board of Vocational Training Centre in Hong Kong
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EFREREEBALAEREE

from 2000 to 2007 and the member of Investors Education Advisory
Committee of Securities and Futures Commission from 2008 to 2010.
He was the Chairman of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers Association
from 2007 to 2009. Mr Lee holds a Master of Arts Degree in
Accounting and Finance, and is an associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Liu Runtong, aged 38, obtained Bachelor Degree from
Department of Chinese of Nankai University in 1996 and world
economy postgraduate diploma from Jilin University in 2002. He also
holds qualifications of economist, registered securities investment
consulting analyst and registered insurance broker issued by various
professional organizations in China. Since June 2008, Mr Liu has been
the executive vice president of HEFFHERORIDBR AT, a PRC
subsidiary of the Company. From 1 January 2010, he is the vice
president of “First China Global Wealth Management Company
Limited” (a subsidiary of the Company and formerly known as “First
China Ta Yu Global Wealth Management Limited”). From May 2007 to
September 2008, he was the president of EHERB&LDAR A A
(formerly a PRC subsidiary of the Company before March 2011, which
name had been known as FIIFERERERLELERAT and
subsequently known as FEIITLFERRELBRAF]). For the past
13 years, Mr Liu has held different positions in various financial media
institutions and financial services institutions in Mainland China. During
his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a responsible person for marketing
the newspaper “Securities Times”, he participated in establishing the
“Panorama Network” (www.p5w.net), a well known securities website
in China and acted as its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted
as consultant in establishing and operating the program “Securities
Times” produced by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007,
he served as “Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Shenzhen Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in
setting up and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program
regarding securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was
elected as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock
Exchange” in 2004. Mr Liu had 13 years of management experience
in financial multimedia platform and financial services industry in China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Tony | Tong, aged 44, is presently a director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee at First China Financial Network 8123. Mr Tong
currently also serves as Consultant of Guangdong Dena Law Firm and
Director of Shenzhen Dena Management Consulting Co. Ltd. Mr Tong
graduated from the University of Minnesota with a Bachelor Degree in
Mechanical-Industrial Engineering. Previously Mr Tong served as
Consultant at Andersen Consulting (now known as Accenture), Adjunct
Professor at the University of Minnesota USA, and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr Tong is the inventor of “Internet
Work Flow System” (US Patent Number 6,012,066) and is a frequent
speaker on technology investment. Mr Tong has over 20 years of
experience in management consulting, financing and technology
investment in USA and China. He is co-founder of Pacific Financial
Services Ltd and PacificnetVentures.com, a renowned venture capital
investor in China. Mr Tong was CEO and director of Pacificnet (Nasdaq
listed) from 2000 to 2007, and an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee of Garron International Limited
(HKSE stock code: 1226) from 2007 to 2010. Mr Tong was named
“Asian Gaming 50” by Inside Asian Gaming Magazine in 2008.

Mr Li Jianxing, aged 53, graduated from Shanghai Maritime
University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He also received a
Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius College of
Buffalo. Mr Li has over 20-year experience working experience in the
field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the Investment Department and Finance
Department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998 to
June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from 1999 to 2003. From April 2003 to February 2004,
he was a General Manager Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a Director of Concord
Investment Holdings Limited since 2004.
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Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 72, graduated with a Bachelor
Degree from the Faculty of Engineering Physics of the Tsinghua
University in 1965. He was a visiting scholar in the Brookhaven
National Laboratory of USA and the Stuttgart University of Germany.
He was the vice director of the Tsinghua University R&D department
and the general manager of Tsinghua University Science and
Technology Corporation. During the period from 1999 to 2002, he
held various senior positions in two companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, namely Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua
Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation. He was the chairman and
legal representative of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group
Corporation and president of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he
left these companies in 2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour
(Group) Corporation in 2002 and was its president until 2004.
Professor Zhang is currently the general vice president and secretary
of the Beijing Non-Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs
Association. With his remarkable business leadership as well as
exploratory initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous
contribution to the companies he worked for. He has not only gained
compliments from the society at large, but has also won a series of
honors. In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the “Hong
Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and the
“Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-Governmental
Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association. In 2002, he was
selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village Outstanding
Entrepreneurs”. Prof Zhang is currently an independent director of
Beijing Lanxum Technology Co., Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300010).

Mr Chen Shu Wen, aged 57, graduated from S1bEA4EAE (Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics) with a bachelor degree in
Economics and obtained a master degree and a phD in Economics
from FMAE (Jilin University). He is a qualified PRC lawyer currently
practising at FEERXGEEEMFT (Liaoning Tianhe Law Firm). Mr
Chen has substantial management and leadership experience serving
in the PRC government. He commenced his career as the Deputy
County Chief (of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning
Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the Director ( F1F) of ZEH&
EEEHILE LR B2 Benxi City Commission for Restructuring the
Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the Director General (F£1E) of
KEMEINEEE HEIEELZBE (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic
Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until 2001. Since 2003, Mr Chen
has been the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at AEIE
TREEFEER (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian
University of Technology). He is currently a director of & AE#% 1A
FR A F(Yingkou Port Liability Co., Ltd) (Shanghai Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 600317).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on
pages 36 to 37.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
of the Company is available for distribution as dividends to its
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association and a statutory solvency test. In accordance with
Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company or from
any reserves set aside from profits which the Directors determine to
be no longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared or paid out of share premium
account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2011.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Wenming (Chairman)
Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng
Tsang Hing Lun (resigned on 6 January 2011)
Zhang Fei Ze (resigned on 28 March 2011)
Tony | Tong (appointed on 28 March 2011)
Li Jianxing (appointed on 28 March 2011)
Wu Du Yong (appointed on 20 May 2011,
and resigned on 21 June 2011)
Chen Shu Wen (appointed on 23 September 2011)

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are Mr Wang Wenming and Mr Lee Yiu Sun. In
accordance with Article 86(3), Mr Chen Shu Wen, being appointed by
the Directors after the Company’s last annual general meeting held on
28 June 2011, will hold office until the annual general meeting. All
three directors are being eligible for re-election and will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHzEERiRE

R-E——FE+-A=+—8H BZENARQT
TBRHERRFSEEMAEEZE(TER
BHREEGGIEXVER) 2k - RN &
EHEP - BEREFESMNBEGIIEXVIHET
Me8HAEME AR KB RZT 2 mSAR
(BREBREBEEFRAERIEHAGEESEE
RSB 2 TR R ) » SRS K
B 5D 5 352 (KBS sz kATl B i it 2.
BEZSAE - HIRBRIZER ETRAIFES.46E
5.67 ARG AN R MR 2 ok R 1
™

(@ RARFRMDZITE

Number of shares

i3k =]
Approximate
percentage
Personal Corporate of
Name of Director Interests Interests Total shareholding
L EDEE T
EEfE B AL AT I B
Wang Wenming (Note 1) F 3B (i EE) 595,328,957 — 595,328,957 14.78%
Lee Yiu Sun TR 110,060,000 — 110,060,000 2.73%
Liu Runtong 2R 2,646,000 — 2,646,000 0.07%
Notes: PRE -
(1) Mr. Wang Wenming held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen (1) TR A A 450,212,307 AR A%

Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming, held 145,116,650 shares of
the Company. As such, Mr. Wang Wenming was deemed to be interested
in 595,328,957 shares of the Company.

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

) Share option scheme of the Company
Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 17 December 2001 (the “Share Option
Scheme”), the Directors and chief executive were granted
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company,
the details of which as at 31 December 2011 are as

EERITHAERNRAAE G « ARG
RfaHZEERIRE(E)

(b) REATHEEIRGZEFR

) ARAEREE
REARBANR_TZ—F+ A+
+ BERAZ B 8 ([ B IS
g))  EFRTHRAHERBERE

-
=7
R

BAREIRD  R-T——%F+

“A=tT—RZFBOT

follows:
Number of share options
RESE
Outstanding as Outstanding as
Exercise at 1 January Exercised during Lapsed during  at 31 December
Name of Director Date of grant price Exercisable period 2011 the year the year 2011
R=%——% RZ%——%
—A-H +=A=t+-H
EEEH R BH TR TR BARITHE FRITHE FRXRY HRITHE
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 = = 11,682,577
EXHEE -2 0419%T —F-TFWMA+=EZE
mA+=RH —T-TEEA+CA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 — - 31,861,575
TR EE —T-TF 0419%T —Z-TEMAT=HZE
mA+=8 “Z-TFMA+H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
TRALE ZTTHF 0215871 “ETLFNARRE
NAER —Z—tFNANE
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 = = 31,861,575
Elarabit 2 —Z-TF 0419 —Z-TEMAT=HAZE
mA+=H ZE-ZEMATZH
Dr. Tsang Hing Lun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 3,186,158 — (3,186,158) —
LEREL —F-%4% 0419%T —E—FEMA+=RZ (Note 2)
mA+=8 “Z-TFNA+H (Hizz2)
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
RAEHE “T-TF 0419% T —F-TFEMA+=RZ
mA+=R8 ZZ-TFMA+ZA
Notes: FffsE
©) with effect from 6 January 2011, Dr Tsang Hing Lun resigned as ©) W-T——F— A NHIE  BEBE

an independent non-executive director of the Company, member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Accordingly his entitlement to share option lapsed on
the same date. Reference is made to the announcement dated 7
January 2011.

1 6 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

(i)

Agreement and Subscription Agreement involving granting
of share options

Pursuant to the Agreement dated 11 July 2007 and the
Supplementary Agreement dated 30 July 2007 relating to
the acquisition of the entire shareholding of GoHi Holdings
Limited (collectively the “Agreements”), the Company
granted to Mr. Wang Wenming an option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price
of HK$0.15 per share in each of the 12-month periods
ending 30 June 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively (i.e. a
maximum of 60,000,000 shares) subject to the fulfillment
of certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreements. With
the fulfillment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2008, an option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr Wang Wenming
who exercised the options and was allotted 20,000,000
shares on 15 January 2009.

With the fulfilment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2009, another option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming
who exercised the option and was allotted 20,000,000
shares on 26 February 2010. Since the said conditions for
the 12-month period 30 June 2010 was not fulfilled,
accordingly, pursuant to the aforesaid Agreements, the
remaining option to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares of
the Company was not granted and has lapsed as at 31
December 2011.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits by

means of the acquisition of shares in,
(including debentures) of,

or debt securities
the Company or any other body

corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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(b)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
RAAEHERERSRZRE

(c) Short positions in underlying shares of the Company (c)

Number of shares

18

R EE
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage of
Name of Director Interests Interests shareholding
ESHE B A M ASHELE  #MORRESL
Lee Yiu Sun 50,000,000 — 1.24%
(Note 3)
IR (Ft7E3)
Note: FitsT -

Q) Pursuant to an option deed dated 31 August 2005, Asia Network Holdings
Limited entered into an option deed with Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (“Mr. Lee”)
whereby Mr. Lee granted Asia Network Holdings Limited an option to
purchase all or part of his 50,000,000 shares in the Company at such
time and such price when Mr. Lee intends to transfer or dispose of all or
part of the shares to any person during the period commencing on 31
August 2005 till the date when Mr. Lee ceases to be interested in the
shares.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required () to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) are
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register referred to therein; or (i) are required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ EERHE M A THNE AT IRH RAEE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND Retn 2 EmRi%E

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31 HBARATEEFRM R_E—F+-A=+
December 2011, the following persons (not being a Director of the —H @ ZIBEEF RIS IEME 36 IKFE 2
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares which were &2 Fracs® - THA T (W IEARTES )R
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the MR EkiEEERMNT - ACDBRES KIS E
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in  HIEXVERE 2 K 370 G A& A B K BT PRy

the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: ZHER
(a) Long positions in shares of the Company (a) NEATRKZHE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
g St BHEE #SMOBRESL
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin Beneficial owners 595,328,957 14.78%
(Note 1) (Note 1)
F 3R R R 22 (P EE1) BE=EAA (Ffg7E1)
Wang Jia Wei (Note 2) Beneficial owners 202,043,628 5.01%
FRE(HE2) BB A

Notes: BRE -

(1) Ms Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen 1) PR %I T H 145,116,650 A2 A%
Dongjin is the spouse of a director of the Company, Mr. Wang Wenming, h e RAELLTARNARESERHEEY
who held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. As such, they were BB - £ XERSC AR A 450,212,307 R AR
deemed to be collectively interested in 595,328,957 shares of the NERGD - Bl BERBEAXRRESA
Company. 595,328,957 IRAA A BIRLS ©

2 Mr Wang Jia Wei is the son of Mr Wang Wenming @ IRBEREREXRREZRT ©

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MAEATHEFERGBZIFE

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares shareholding
g St BHEE #SMOBRESLt
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.29%

(Note 3)

FEARRLE E=EAA (H$7E3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Note:

©)] Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Mr Wang Wenming was granted
on 13 April 2010 share options, the number of shares underlying which
was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the
Company. Ms. Chen Dongijin is the spouse of Mr Wang Wenming so they
were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to subscribe
for 11,682,577 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the
Company had not been notified of any other person (other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company and was required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the issued
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group.

DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY
(@) Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) under which the Directors or employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries or certain other persons may be
granted share options to subscribe for shares of the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the Scheme,
until 17 December 2011 when the Scheme expired.

(1) Summary of the Scheme

(1) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the people
and the parties working for the interest of the Group
with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest
of the Group and thereby providing them with an
incentive to work better for the interest of the
Group.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

(1)

Summary of the Scheme (continueq)

(i)

(i)

()

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant
share options to () employees of the Company
(whether full-time or part-time) or any of its
subsidiaries or associated companies; (iij Directors
(whether Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) suppliers of goods and/or services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; and (iv) professionals engaged by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

As at 31 December 2011, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Scheme was Nil
because the Scheme has expired on 17 December
2011.

Maximum entitlerment of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan)
to each participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant of the options shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue, save for those share options already granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

BEMEHAKREEARLT

FABRMBREFE(E)

(a)

FATERAE ()
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At BIZHIE (E)

(i)

(i)
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY A ATISHEBRERE(Z)

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

(1)

Summary of the Scheme (continueq)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

Option Period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period of
not more than ten years to be notified by the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) to each
participant which period of time shall commence on
the date on which an offer of the grant of an option
is accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
accordance with the Scheme and expire on the last
day of such period as determined by the Board.
There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the
Company on acceptance of the option offer as
consideration for the grant and received by the
Company within 14 days from the offer date or
within such offer period of time as may be
determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under
the Scheme is determined by the Board and notified
to each participant and shall be no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five consecutive Trading Days immediately
preceding the date of offer, and (i) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY AASIZHEBIEHEE(E)

(continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued) (a) EATIHEIRERTEIE)
(1) Summary of the Scheme (continueq) (1) ZtEIZHE(E)
(vii)  Remaining life of the Scheme (i)  ZETEZ AR B AR
The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a EREAEN_ZEZE—F+
period of 10 years commencing on 17 December ZATtHBFTEEHE—
2001 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution BB - HEERE SRR
in general meeting or Board may at any time e A2 A (AR K& LA
terminate the operation of the Share Option TERARRIAN)NESTS
Scheme) and in such event, no further options will Bk - BT - NEHE
be offered but the provisions of the Share Option — RN IERRE - R
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full FHE BT E M T E
force and effect. The Scheme has expired on 17 METREAN - ZFHEIAM
December 2011, HER=E——F+=ZA+
HHE® °
(2) Details of share options granted by the Company (2) ELGERLBRIEZHE
On 5 September 2007 and 13 April 2010, options to RZEZLFNLARBR-ZE—ZF
subscribe for 32,400,000 shares and 84,000,000 of the FOA+=H  DRRAEERER
Company respectively were granted to the Directors and A5 T B & L AT 3R 32,400,000
certain employees of the Company. As at 31 December [1% X2 84,000,000 Jg A8~ &A% (0 2 i
2011, details of the outstanding options were as follows: fete e RZFE——F+_HA=+—

B mARITEERE BT

13/04/2010 89,212,411 — — 3,186,158 86,026,253  13/04/2010- 0.419
—T-TFEMA+=H (Note 1) 12/04/2020
(FfiE1)
05/09/2007 4,779,236 — — — 4,779,236  05/09/2007— 0.215
—ETLFAATA 04/09/2017
Note: Bi5E
1) with effect from 6 January 2011, Dr Tsang Hing Lun resigned as ©) H-T——F— A AL TEBE
an independent non-executive director of the Company, member of TEERDRBLIFRITES - B
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination ZEEKE FTHEEEKERIRSE
Committee. Accordingly his entitlement to the share option lapsed LZEGKE - At - HERZBERE
on the same date. Reference is made to the announcement dated REBXY - F2HAHA-T ——
7 January 2011. F—AERZAMH -

BENEHAXREEBERIT[ —T——F5FH 23
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY
(continued)

(b) Agreement and Supplemental Agreement involving

granting of share options

Pursuant to the Agreement dated 11 July 2007 and the
Supplementary Agreement dated 30 July 2007 relating to the
acquisition of the entire shareholding of GoHi Holdings Limited
(collectively the “Agreements”), the Company granted to Mr.
Wang Wenming an option to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.15 per share in
each of the 12-month periods ending 30 June 2008, 2009 and
2010 respectively (i.e. a maximum of 60,000,000 shares) subject
to the fulfillment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
Agreements. With the fulfillment of the said conditions for the
12-month period 30 June 2008, an option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming who
exercised the options and was allotted 20,000,000 shares on
15 January 2009.

With the fulfillment of the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2009, another option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares was granted to Mr. Wang Wenming who
exercised the option and was allotted 20,000,000 shares on 26
February 2010. Since the said conditions for the 12-month
period 30 June 2010 was not fulffilled, accordingly, pursuant to
the aforesaid Agreements, the remaining option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares of the Company was not granted and has
lapsed as at 31 December 2011.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and the subscription agreement
as described above and in Notes 32 and 34 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any
of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, save as disclosed in the
financial statements, in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover attributable to its five
largest customers combined accounted for less that 35% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such code
of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng was reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s directions
and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in good
corporate governance and corporate governance practices that
promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It is
committed to and has applied the principles of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company
was in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive directors (including
four independent non-executive directors), the present board has an
appropriate composition of directors. In ensuring that the Company
has an effective Board, the segregation of the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer has been in place since the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange. Each of all of the non-executive
directors is appointed on a two-year term. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-executive
directors are independent. Two independent non-executive directors,
Mr Wu Du Yong and Mr Zhang Fei Ze, have resigned during the year
respectively due to personal reasons and commitment to other
business engagements. The present board is composed of more than
one-third of independent non-executive directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Wenming (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Tony | Tong (appointed on 28 March 2011)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (appointed on 28 March 2011)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (appointed on 23 September 2011)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly, interim
and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the Group’s
business to ensure that these risks are within manageable limits. It is
also mandated to approve any substantial investment, acquisition or
disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters that are delegated
to the management include the execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board and the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports for the Board’s approval.
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Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive
Directors.

As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of six directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr Wang Wenming, Mr
Lee Yiu Sun, Mr Tony | Tong, Mr Li Jianxing and Mr Chen Shu Wen.
Four out of the six directors are independent non-executive directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
Director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal
and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine the
specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEEE(E)
There were five board meetings during the year. The attendance of FALBITHAEEZC L -EE/ 58S
Directors at the board meetings was as follows: FEEEERNT
Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of
meetings during
term of service
HEE
SRR
Members 54=] EREBITERRE
Wang Wenming FHA 5/5
Lee Yiu Sun R 5/5
Liu Runtong EELE 4/5
Zhang Benzheng sRARIE 5/5
Tony | Tong B
(appointed on 28 March 2011) (RZZE—F=A -+ NBEZE) 3/5
Li Jianxing 1T
(appointed on 28 March 2011) (M=—Z——F=A -+ N\BHEEZE) 4/5
Chen Shu Wen 511978
(appointed on 23 September 2011) (RZZE——FNAZT=AEZET) 1/5
Zhang Fei Ze RAE
(resigned on 28 March 2011) (R—ZT——F=F -+ /\BET) 1/5
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS ESie
The Company has established a Remuneraton Committee with ARBIEKZFHMES S - WASEA] ARBAE
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration #i[E o FIARITHMEE G 2 RAHBHOKE RBE

MIFITES -
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remunerations.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination
Committee consisted of five directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr
Wang Wenming, Mr Tony | Tong, Mr Li Jianxing and Mr Chen Shu
Wen. Four out of the five directors are independent non-executive
directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-
executive Director, is the chairman of the committee. Thus the present
Committee consist a majority of independent non-executive directors.
The Nomination Committee’s role and function includes, but is not
limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the board
of directors on a regular basis and making recommendations
regarding any proposed changes; identifying and recommending
individuals suitably qualified to become board members; and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee review
suggested the candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that these
candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the structure,
size, and composition of the board of directors. Only candidates who
have integrity and can provide specific contributions to the Company
thereby enhancing the value of the Company are considered for
nomination to the board of directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work included reviewing
four candidates for directorship, three membership of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
having regard to their reputations and their specific skills, in view of
their potential contribution to the Company; it subsequently made
recommendations thereon to the board of directors.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group engaged its
auditors, Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, to provide the following
services and their respective fees charged are set out below:

AT &

(2 E-—F+_A=+—RIFE  £&E
EEREE BB EHMER T
RS - BRARG S A2 WEFHIINT -

Type of services RF5TESE 2011 Approximately
—E——FHH

HKS$

BIT

Audit of the financial statements of the Group RS EZE 500,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee consist of four
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr Tony | Tong,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr Li Jianxing and Mr Chen Shu Wen.
Mr Tony | Tong, being an independent non-executive Director, is the
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.

The Audit Committee have reviewed the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 pursuant to the relevant
provisions contained in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and were of the
opinion that such statements had complied with applicable accounting
standards and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect
thereof.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

L
BEESE(Z)
EZZEERNFASRITNREE HKEZ
HREEAT
Attendance
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of

meetings during
term of service

HEE

SRR

Members 54=] EREBITERRE

Zhang Benzheng NI 4/4

Tony | Tong R

(appointed on 28 March 2011) (R=—ZT——F=A -+ /\BEZT) 3/4
Chen Shu Wen BoRAI 3L

(appointed on 23 September 2011) (RZE2——F A T=RAEZE) 1/4

Li Jianxing (appointed on 28 March 2011)  FET(RZZT——F = A=+ N\BEZEE) 4/4

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 34 to
35.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng was reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation
of the Group’s internal controls has been conducted by management
on an on-going basis to ensure that the system of internal control is
effective and adequate.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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During the year, the Audit Committee’s work included having held four
meetings to liaise and discuss with the external auditors and listening
to reports from the management on the financial management,
financial statements and audit of the Company. It was found that the
management of the Company and its respective subsidiaries
performed their respective works wholeheartedly. They have
discharged their duties in good faith in line with their corporate
constitutions to make sure that the operations of the business run
compliantly. During the course of managerial control, advice and
recommendation is collected and forwarded for discussion in the
board meetings. There has been no significant issue arising out of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls in the
Group. Accordingly, the Board believed that there would be no
significant matter to be brought to the shareholders’ attention.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First China
Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
36 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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ZEEEBARR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
Note HK$ HK$
Bt &I HIT
Revenue —E 5 12,686,091 48,989,233
Cost of sales SHEMK A (178,266) —
Gross profits el 12,507,825 48,989,233
Other gains H A Yas 7 5,606,030 2,161,965
Other income H A 8 3,397,087 2,181,908
Employee benefits expenses RERFIRX 11 (16,823,214) (55,193,170)
Depreciation of property, plant and EN S YN
equipment R E 17 (5,208,717) (4,702,051)
Amortization of intangible assets m B E#E 19 - (4,800,905)
Impairment of goodwill EEYERED 19 - (53,811,784)
Impairment of other intangible assets  H M EFEERE 19 - (131,026,047)
Impairment of trade receivables FEW AR FORE 25 - (120,049)
Impairment of other receivables HAth e W IBRE (4,714,937) (1,537,454)
Finance costs BB 9 (895,398) (685,937)
Other operating expenses HAL &> (28,350,355) (51,658,982)
Share of losses of associates JE(RE & R R ES 1R 22 (245,543) (364,161)
Loss before income tax bR TS H A ES 1R 10 (34,727,222) (250,567,434)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTisB (X)) He 14 (4,702,505) 31,927,626
Loss for the year FRNEE (39,429,727) (218,639,808)
Other comprehensive income Hih2ZmEHEA
Currency translation differences: EHCIEH E5E ¢
— Group — 55 656,093 4,594,992
— Associates S WNC 22,733 32,086
Release of translation reserve upon & — R B A R ARRR
disposal of a subsidiary E R (54,684) (258)
Other comprehensive income for the FRNEAMZEKA
year, net of tax B 624,142 4,626,820
Total comprehensive loss for the year R 2 EEELA58 (38,805,585) (214,012,988)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEBRARR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

NS

a\

N

2011 2010
—ET——% —E-TF
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{GE R ESTE -
Owners of the Company KARER A 15 (37,855,857) (215,332,026)
Non-controlling interests IR = (1,573,870) (3,307,782)
(39,429,727) (218,639,808)
Total comprehensive loss [EiEEREE
attributable to: B84
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZEN (37,121,361) (210,646,237)
Non-controlling interests EISuPe (1,684,224) (3,366,751)
(38,805,585)  (214,012,988)
Loss per share for loss attributable fERNAAE
to owners of the Company during  #H A\FELEE
the year ZBEEE
— basic (HK cents) — EARGEW) 16 (0.96) 6.12)
— diluted (HK cents) — BEOB) 16 (0.96) 6.12)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At F5 4K AL ] R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+-A=+—8

__.'-. ! E
-

The Group The Company
FEE AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
g% —T-TF —F——%F —T-TF
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(i3 AT BT HT BT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1%  #2 RE&1E 17 48,637,574 12,513,884 1,402,618 1,751,011
Investment property BEYME 18 42,100,000 — - —
Intangible assets B EE 19 84,809 81,373 - —
Statutory deposits and other EEES R
assets Hih &R 20 575,000 575,000 - -
Investments in subsidiaries KB RAZIE 21 - - 4,771,260 4,771,262
Investments in associates i NCIE ) 22 1,676,076 669,056 - =
93,073,459 13,839,313 6,173,878 6,522,273
Current assets RENEE
Inventories & 23 140,514 41,289 - =
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE 24 2,110,359 3,217,558 - —
Current income tax recoverable AT [l BNEAFT 1575 2,294,840 2,201,858 - —
Trade receivables JEUTBR K 25 4,514,554 6,186,956 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRfFIE « &K
receivables H A FEURIR 26 30,849,404 55,886,187 99,577 124,428
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEUHTB A RIFIAE 21 - - 69,899,927 18,406,333
Amounts due from NI E
associates REIA 22 15,966,214 2,501,961 - -
Bank balances and cash RITEHBRRS 27 46,302,258 131,892,718 8,117,805 65,860,262
102,178,143 201,928,527 78,117,309 84,391,023
Total assets EEME 195,251,602 215,767,840 84,291,187 90,913,296
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables FEfTER X 28 9,087,097 29,394,041 - —
Other payables H A0 e[ 5RIB &
and accruals et IR 29 12,088,238 14,136,997 1,286,387 1,636,302
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBH B A B 5RIR 21 - - 1,285,991 1,309,020
Amount due to an e — R B
associate NGIF QL 22 287 = - =
Borrowings A 30 36,252,047 - - -
57,427,669 43,531,038 2,572,378 2,945,322
Net current assets RENEEFE 44,750,474 158,397,489 75,544,931 81,445,701
Total assets less current EEMERRE
liabilities =15 137,823,933 172,236,802 81,718,809 87,967,974

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MERRAB R

As at 31 December 2011
R=F—F+=-A=+—H

The Group The Company
REE AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
-5 —T-TF -5 —T-TF
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Bk T BT EI BT
Non-current liabilities ERBaE
Deferred income tax liabilities EREFENAE 31 4,379,334 — - —
4,379,334 = - _
Net assets BEZFE 133,444,599 172,236,802 81,718,809 87,967,974
Capital and reserves AR fHE
Share capital e 32 40,289,642 38,289,642 40,289,642 38,289,642
Share premium Wi imfE 32 1,028,819,484 862,819,484 1,028,819,484 862,819,484
Special reserve Sl 33 4,778,740 4,778,740 - =
Translation reserve b 55 (o 1 9,571,023 8,836,527 - =
Shares to be issued BTG 35(c) — 168,000,000 — 168,000,000
Share options reserve B 35(c) - 14,460,609 - 14,460,609
Warrants reserve RIRIEE 37 223,224 = 223,224 =
Share-based compensation B feE
reserve it 34 23,254,749 24.177,746 23,254,749 24.177,746
Accumulated losses 2ETEIE (969,934,533)  (952,015,652) (1,010,868,290) (1,019,779,507)
Equity attributable to owners AATHHEA
of the Company FE{G#ERR 137,002,329 169,347,096 81,718,809 87,967,974
Non-controlling interests FEIERR LR (3,557,730) 2,889,706 - —
Total equity KRS 133,444,509 172,236,802 81,718,809 87,967,974
Wang Wenming FE3CBH Lee Yiu Sun ZHE#H
Director %% Director %%
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

N =
ZEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——F+-A=t+—BLFE

2011 2010
—g——f "—T-ITF
Note HK$ HK$
BiE P AT
Cash flows from operating activities TEEHRBRERE
Loss before income tax BRETIS i RIEE (34,727,222) (250,567,434)
Adjustments for: BN BIRHE -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — W% BB RRETE 5,208,717 4,702,051
— Amortization of intangible assets — B AEEH - 4,800,905
— Share of losses of associates — EEBE AT EE 245,543 364,161
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, — HEYE  BERHREY
plant and equipment (z) /B4 (258,765) 30,945
— Net fair value losses/(gains) on — BREEZATEER/
securities trading (Mezs ) 58 1,261,117 (2,258,847)
— Net fair value gains on investment property — BEWMEZ N ENEFE (344,500) —
— Impairment of goodwill — HERE — 53,811,784
— Impairment of other intangible assets — HihEVEE 2 RE — 131,026,047
— Impairment of trade receivables — BHRWFIERE - 120,049
— Impairment of other receivables — HiERFIEZ RE 4,714,937 1,637,454
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — HEMBAR W (3,971,794)  (2,161,965)
— Share-based compensation expenses — BHOmEERS — 23,382,573
— Interest income — FEHA (937,225) (538,561)
Operating cash flows before changes BESSPBRZEERSRE
in working capital (28,809,192) (35,750,838)
— Inventories - 78 (99,225) (41,289)
— Held-for-trading investments — BEEBRE (153,918) (958,711)
— Trade receivables — FEURERER 1,670,933 (8,535,630)
— Prepayments, deposits and — BNRE - BeREM
other receivables e IE 19,773,667  (23,209,956)
— Segregated trust bank balances — BUERRPES 20,279,268 6,701,221
— Trade payables — FERTERER (20,306,944)  (1,805,435)
— Other payables and accruals — EtbEA R R ER A (1,959,845) 6,908,310
Cash used in operations HEFHAZRE (9,605,256)  (56,692,328)
Income tax paid EAEH (323,171)  (7,333,167)
Interest received 2R 937,225 538,561
Net cash used in operating activities EEEHHAZELTE (8,991,202) (63,486,934

Cash flows from investing activities

REFHRBHERE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE « M RERE (41,237,868)  (3,687,409)
Purchase of investment property REREME (41,755,500) -
Purchases of intangible assets HEETEE - (1,933,967)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYS « S L EFTEIIE

plant and equipment 440,086 52,366
Acquisition of remaining equity interest in a subsidiary WiiE —RRTE A B (1) —
Proceeds from disposal of partial equity interest in a & — KB A BE 2 R A

subsidiary ZFTSR0E - 1,180,000
Advances to associates NI =N (13,464,253) (105,531)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEHB AR - MEBRAEHES - 42,169
Investment in associates NN (1,229,830 =
Repayment from an associate B N AR IR 287 =
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed HENRBAR - MERHERS 4,317,555 4,204,842
Net cash used in investing activities BEEFHSHAZIRSFHE (92,929,524) (247,530)

BHEKREEEERAR —Z——F5#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

N =
ZEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——F+-A=t+—BLFE

2011 2010
—E——F -—ZT-ZTF
Note HK$ HK$
Pz BT BT
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHERERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, BITEERATSRIE - MIRIEE
net of related transaction costs R HRA — 188,066,599
Proceeds from issue of warrants, BITRIREB S FIE © HIk
net of related transaction costs R ZAA 223,224 =
Transaction costs attributable to issue BITEBAR . R KA
of ordinary shares - (2,424,551)
Repayments of loan payable under control agreements & il i 2 BN EZUER -  (62,875,950)
Repayments of short-term bank loan RERITE R 2B —  (14,727,700)
Repayments of bank borrowings RITETLIEK (2,877,953) —
Drawdown of bank borrowings G 7 SRITER 39,130,000 =
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests FEEEREE - 5,088,160
Net cash generated from financing activities REEHELZHSEHE 36,475,271 113,126,558
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRRL%EEEBGRD)
cash equivalents e (65,445,455) 49,392,094
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FzRekReEEER 104,961,222 54,004,538
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEIBE 2B s 134,263 1,564,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZASRREEEER 27 39,650,030 104,961,222

Net cash (outflow)/inflow on acquisition of

BEEHBASZHE(RH),

subsidiaries: MAFHE
Purchase consideration, settled in cash WHER(E - WREIM - (240,720)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired BANBARRERAS
£EIEH - 282,889
— 42,169
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HERBASEEZIREFHE
of subsidiaries: WA :
Total cash consideration BRSNE 4,811,160 22,851,313
Bank balances and cash disposed, BEHNERITEBRERS
excluding segregated trust bank balances (TREBVERERRER) (493,605)  (18,646,471)
4317555 4004842
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sl B LGRS REGES A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRFTMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of stock information and research
analysis services and trading and principal investments in the
Peoples’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), provision of securities
trading services, corporate finance consultancy services, trading
and principal investments in Hong Kong, and wealth
management services in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office is
situated at Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor,
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong Building,
No.64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company
has selected Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more beneficial to the
user of the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated
financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 23 March 2012.
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EEE N BEREHY EEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B IR XM

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2.

46

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011 that would
be expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

HKAS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures” —
effective from 1 January 2011. The revised standard
clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related
party and removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all transactions
with the government and other government-related
entities.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continueq)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, “Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments” — effective from 1 January
2011. The interpretation clarifies the accounting by
an entity when the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and result in the entity issuing equity
instruments to a creditor of the entity to extinguish
all or part of the financial liability (debt for equity
swap). It requires a gain or loss to be recognized in
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
should be measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished.

Except for the adoption of HKAS 24 (revised) and
HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, the adoption of other new and
amended standards and interpretations does not
have material impact on these consolidated financial
statements and does not result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M5 W, R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

48

®)

(©

New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have been early adopted by the
Group:

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS
12, “Income taxes”, to introduce an exception to the
principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets
or liabilities arising on an investment property
measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires an entity
to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount to asset through use or sale.
The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property measured at fair value
is recovered entirely by sales. The amendment is
applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012 with early
adoption permitted. The Group has early adopted
this amendment retrospectively for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011.

New and amended standards have been issued

but are not effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2011 and have not been early adopted

by the Group:

o HKFRS 7 (Amendments), “Disclosures -
Transfers of financial assets” (effective for the
Group for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012).

o HKFRS 7, “Disclosures — offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities” (effective for the
Group for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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L 2

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)  New and amended standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2011 and have not been early adopted
by the Group: (continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (effective for
the Group for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015).

HKFRS 9 & HKFRS 7, “Mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosure”
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015).

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” (effective for
the Group for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013).

HKFRS 12, “Disclosure of interests in other
entities” (effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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L 2

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)  New and amended standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2011 and have not been early adopted
by the Group: (continued)

HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” (effective
for the Group for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income” (effective for
the Group for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2012).

HKAS 19 (2011), “Employee benefits” (effective
for the Group for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 27 (2011), “Separate financial
statements” (effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 28 (2011), “Investments in associates
and joint ventures” (effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

EREE(E)
B BRRIEFNEZEE) (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IEEHBRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c)  New and amended standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2011 and have not been early adopted
by the Group: (continued)

° HKAS 32, “Offsetting financial assets &
financial liabilities” (effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014).

o HK(FRIC) — Int 20, “Stripping Costs in the
production phase of a surface mine” (effective
for the Group for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013).

The adoption of the above standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards in future
periods is not expected to result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

In addition, HKICPA also published a number of
amendments to the existing standards under its
annual improvement projects. These amendments
are not expected to have a significant financial
impact on the results and financial position of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEABRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 MEAS
2.2.1 Consolidation 2.2.1 &8

52

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognized in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

®)

(©

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions - that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEHBREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continueqd) 22 KBATE)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 BiHF#RZE

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost RITEB AR Z & E TH AR A
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes BEREZ FERTE © KA
in consideration arising from contingent consideration KRAEARBEASARERE
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable FIEEZREZE o BKATT
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are BIEIRE B EERA o [ff
accounted for by the Company on the basis of BRRZEETIRANR AR
dividend and receivable. I8 & EUGRIBARR ©
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries i $% & Y B A ) kB & A )
or associates is required upon receiving dividends FREEHE 2 B BB B A ]
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the Sl ARl NIk E R 22
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary or EAUA - B IRE
associate in the period the dividend is declared or if AZERBEBBGEE Y
the carrying amount of the investment in the BHRRAWKEE 2 FEE
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying (BEME)EREE @ Bl
amount in the consolidated financial statements of BB BREMSRERENZA
the investee’s net assets including goodwill. ISR EEITRER -

2.3 Associates 2.3 HEAT

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwil
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

2.3

24

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognized in the consolidation statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognized
in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal and
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent to
“share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognized in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’'s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation

@)

©)

©

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EtBRBIE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 25 SMERE(E)
(c)  Group companies (continueq) () FEEETAFE)

e income and expenses for each statement of e FEEBAFREZEK
comprehensive income are translated at AR HIEFRFEY
average exchange rates for the year; and PERME

e all resulting exchange differences are e MMAENEZEBERNHE
recognized in other comprehensive income. fth 2 EURATER ©

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the WEINHNEEELERE R

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets ANHEARZEINEER 2

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at BENBERE - WS

the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are ERME - fTELEZIERE
recognized in equity. B IR ©
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 Y% - HBRRERE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost MZE - WS R IR SE AN R
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that EIR - BEpKABIEEZIRB K
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. BAEMIEE 2fX - HBERKAER
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying EARAIAR 2 BB A ER
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, AREE BZIEE 2 KA gE 7] SE5t
only when it is probable that future economic benefits BN At ABEREBEXERS
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the BYEEGRBERBERME) o HE
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying HEb D 2 BREE SR ILHER © FT R
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other E b #EE MRS E A 2 B AR
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated Eir e 2 EWARKING -

statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is M - M REBEHEZITETNERS
calculated, using the straight-line method to allocate their % REMEERIMEREE - ASEK
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful Ao Z B FIEREE - FTAFHN
lives, as follows: S ¢

Land Over the term of leases Tib R %) F AP
Building 25 years BF 25%F
Leasehold improvements Over the term of leases HEWMFERE IR A4 B
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years PN T 5 AR 3&E54F
Computer equipment 3 years BIMRE 3F
Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years b 3ZE104F
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, BEZFGEERA{FEAFHRE
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting WE ARG R R - WEE SR
period. {EHFAEE -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBSRBEE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.6 Y - HEBRREE)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to B E 2 BREE SR E AT Uk E
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is B - HEREERRHURZ i
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. T o
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing & RBBIRFTSFIEEREE
the proceeds with the carrying amount and recognized in RETF - WRERE Z2EBRAREA
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. TH TR o
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in EHEEEH®%  EttREHERNzS
other reserves are transferred to retained earnings. HRERERERT -

2.7 Investment properties 2.7 REME

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property. Investment
property comprises freehold land, land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases.
Land held under operating leases and buildings is
classified and accounted for as investment property when
the rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs are incurred for the purpose of acquiring
or constructing a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
its cost. Borrowing costs are capitalized while acquisition
or construction is actively underway and cease once the
asset is substantially complete, or suspended if the
development of the asset is suspended.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value. Fair value is based on valuations carried out by
professional valuers. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property, or
for which the market has become less active continues to
be measured at fair value. Where fair value of investment
property under construction is not reliably determinable,
such investment property under construction is measured
at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
determinable or construction is completed (whichever is
earlier).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on
a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected
in respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognized as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of leasehold land, if any, classified as investment
property; others, including contingent rent payments, are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount
of the property only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values of investment property are
recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal.

When an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale, the property is transferred to completed properties
held for sale at its fair value at the date of change in use.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, except that
the land portion is reclassified as leasehold land and land
use rights if it is operating lease in nature, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IFESHBREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Investment properties (continued) 2.7 REYMEGE)
If a property becomes an investment property because its EMEZREREMKAREY
use has changed, any difference resulting between the ¥ ZWERNERAHR RAER
carrying amount and the fair value of this property at the A ENEAEBEEEETERS
date of transfer is recognized in equity as revaluation of Y12 - MBS RERERER - A
property, plant and equipment. However, if the fair value AN TAEW R 1 DATE 2 R B B 1R R
gives rise to a reversal of a previous impairment, this M - ZWERERE 2SR E
write-back is recognized in the consolidated statement of R o BFEBEERBANEHEMZE
comprehensive income. This revaluation reserve shall oS = RRRRERE o
remain and be transferred to revenue reserve upon
disposal of this property.
2.8 Intangible assets 28 MWMEEE
(a) Goodwill (a) BE
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an B Ig W A AN AN R B
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share FE (5 FT U B BT 8 2 &) 7T 3% Bl
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired BEEFERNBIERHRZ AF
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on BzZE7 - WHEHBARZ
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in “intangible EMEFAIEREE] B8
assets”. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment FFEEITRERE - WIRK
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment AR EEDREEESIER o
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not EHEBETTRE - HE
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an BEREAZHNEREESE
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill EHER 2 BAERERA
relating to the entity sold. (=1
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the EESREERSEE BN
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is EITRERR o TEEI 2R
made to those cash-generating units or groups of ¥BEMHMELAREZRS
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit EEBANIREEFEA
from the business combination in which the goodwill R (IRAE & k) K E D
arose identified according to operating segment. SRS
(b) Trading rights (b) E=EH#E

The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange.
The trading rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EtBRBIE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (continued) 28 WEEEE)
(c) Website (c) HHik
The website hosting an interactive financial video REBEREBEHFHBEA—
channel called Stock Online (AT 7E4E) was acquired BEAMAEmELR ]2 BB
by the Group in a business combination. The AR R IEE - b AR A H
website has a finite useful life and is carried at cost PR+ iR AR R 5T HESE &
less accumulated amortization and impairment. BET - #IEEAERE
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line ETE - EAAEET I AFH
method to allocate the cost of website over its S0F N BLAT A AR o
estimated useful life of 30 years.
(d) Software (d) Bt

The software represents Stock Online First Stock ZEMEIERERE &
Search Software (GEREAZE —EREM). The BREX(E ] o E1EE R R EARR -
software has a finite useful life and is carried at cost R R AR R 5T 85 OB B
less accumulated amortization and impairment. HIBR - BESHER A H BAET
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line B ERHEET AT RS0
method to allocate the cost of software over its FRD R o
estimated useful life of 10 years.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 RIEEHMEEZRERE

62

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@

©®)

©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHABREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

210 £RIEEE)

64

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date (the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset). Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analyzed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortized cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences on monetary securities
are recognized in profit or loss, translation differences on
non-monetary securities are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognized in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognized in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as “net gain
transferred from equity on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods is arrived
at purchase cost. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

2.

2.11

212

ERTBRIME(E)

SREEREE)
PEBTHRHEZEE
RNEE R E S B R A R
REREZRER
—HeRMEELIRE - sioEA
AEEEZERRENS - B5 2
HER RS R B (RN E K ARTR
REERFTRBEZFE o Ml fH
EeMEEFEZLE - R5rEE
(REBEBAEREREATEZZE
o OHZEREE AN ERTER
ZERREBEE) B R T 5
B - WRERER - RiRE 2 EK
ANMKRIER 2 HEm LEREBET
2FEAEEFEEERARER
B - sBE &R RFIHEE 2 &
BLTAEZRAFEBM - MeZIGER]
FER M B (B B RN R iR 2
W BB - BIREEENGS
2HRARER °

SR
B RS RAEL

#lb

B AR R B FEME 2
?ﬁﬁﬁuﬁ% PRANE P S HE ST A
(TR A DETE - R KA
BRBRAGE - ETREFEK
7R o ARIFERIA B XS
b EEERER N EBIHE
FASCRTE




| "-'..'._'l— l'*-» -"\ -
SR, .. 1. 2/ N@\
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRFRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBSREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Trade and other receivables 2.13 FEWGBRR B E 4th FEUG SR IE

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBSRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Borrowings 217 &R

2.18

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designed
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognized initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: () the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the
amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBSREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax

2.19 BNEAREREFRISH

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
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2.20

except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
within the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2010: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan. The
Group is required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based compensation (continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognized
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognizes the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nhominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits faling due more than 12 months after
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBSREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Provisions 2.21 #iE

222

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

2.22

7S SR [ R B 1 38 A 2 SRR
BAEEEHHETE B EMEA A REA
BREREREE - BIEREHAR S
EEREETSBE BN THERER -
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BREFE - ASERAMES 2%
wIEM - SRR/ -

W iR a2
Wan iz B WER Sk B WER B2 R

received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable BT 2R - BIFTRER M B
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and FIE - KHIBRRE ST RIBERE

value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity, and when specific criteria have been met each of
the Group’s activities on the following bases:

(@  Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis.

(b) Fees and service income are recognized when the
relevant transactions have been arranged or the
relevant services have been rendered.

(c) Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded on
change in fair value on the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHBREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.22 WixfER (&)

2.23

2.24

(d) Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

() Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

(f) Rental is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
terms of lease agreements.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (i) has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant influence

2.23

2.24

@ FMEBBATERERRN KX
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AR T BB 2 AT R (B SR
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EERY
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HMEAL
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@ ZBATEEXEB RN
ZRHPN ALEE - ()=
AXEREE  HEAEHE
EBIHEES] (i) RAEE

over the Group; or (i) has joint control over the HEHEZ  UBEASEA
Group; BERTES ok (i) EFE
HIARNEE :

(b)  the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);
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2. IEEFBREIEE) 2. EEEHBRBEE)
2.24 Related parties (continued) 224 BHEEAL(E)

()  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly h ZBALAEK(E)EFFE
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which ATEELREEZES - £FE
significant voting power in such entity resides with, THISEEBEBERTE K
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) NEFRBEEEARAEZE
or (e); or B ok

(@ the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the @ HZBATARAEELAE
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any BEE@AEALTENERZE
entity that is a related party of the Group. TREAZERENFTEF 2

_F °
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBEMRERE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 HBEKRER

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial REE 7 & EBEE S EY 15 R

risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest % 5HA  MERR(BREIINER

rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit %~ N EENERRE  REREF

risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management EEBREERR)  EERR R

program focuses on the unpredictability of financial MEE R o AEE 2 BEER

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects EEFTEIFERN S RIS A TR

on the Group’s financial performance. S e S AN SE S )

TRZBEEEMPERERE

EENEPEERERATY —T——FER 75



.l’.j..ln TN lhmu L“ L

/6

"lj‘l

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8B W RME

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE

3.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

3.1

@

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units in
currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs are denominated
in the functional currencies of the operating
units. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash flow
generated from business transactions locally.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. As at 31
December 2010 and 2011, the Group was
exposed to significant equity price risk. The
Group was exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments classified as
held-for-trading investments (Note 24) as at
31 December 2010 and 2011. The market
value of the Group’s short term investments
at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$3,218,000
and HK$2,110,000.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEKBERE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) HEEEEE)
(i) Price risk (continued) () 1EEER(E)
The Group’s listed investments were listed on AEBEZ EmRET)
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and were valued at RAPBERINBHFR S
quoted market prices as at 31 December FrEmM - WM =F—
2010 and 2011. TERT——F+
“A=+—H&EME
WREME-
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity TRIBEBEBAIRER
to every 5% increase/decrease in the fair —E——FkZFT—
values of the equity investments with all other THEF+ZHA=+—H
variables held constant and before any impact ZHRHE @ A nES
on tax, based on their carrying amount as at HENFESEEH5%
81 December 2011 and 2010. ZGURE (PR H A &
ERFIAERRGR
ARG E) -
Increase/
(decrease) in
carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) in Increase/
equity loss before (decrease) in
investments income tax equity
BARERE BRFEHHES
{EtE,/ 18t/ 3]
(B) (BY)  #m/(BD)
HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
2011 —E——f
Equity securities listed in the PRC B i A S
5% increase in equity price e i 105,518 (105,518) 105,518
5% decrease in equity price RE BRI L6% (105,518) 105,518 (105,518)
2010 —T-ZF
Equity securities listed in the PRC NG ETA v
5% increase in equity price REERILINS% 160,878 (160,878) 160,878
5% decrease in equity price BREERH 5% (160,878) 160,878 (160,878)

HEMCHEEEERAT —T——545% Va4
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2011, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and borrowings which carry prevailing
market interest rates. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The directors considered that
the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
fixed rate borrowings (2010: Nil). The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, if interest
rates on the bank deposits and borrowings
had been increased/decreased by 50 basis
points with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2011 would increase/
(decrease) by HK$524,806 and HK$198,250
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit risk
of the counterparty is managed at an early stage
and sufficient provision is made for possible defaults.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and
other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
certain concentrations of credit risk as approximately
56% (2010: 44%) and 96% (2010: 80%) of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor and the five largest
trade debtors respectively. Further quantitative data
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had a borrowings
with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$36,252,000 (2010: Nil) (Note 30).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEMRER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HHBEKBERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEELEEE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBE A ERHRE M
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual RAR IR & AR IR K2 E
undiscounted payments, was as follows: BB ¢
Between Between Total Total
Less than 1 and 2 and Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
KRR E
DiE 1E26 2F5%5F 5ELE REEE HAREE
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2011 8%
Trade payables FEfTERR 9,087,007 - - - 9,087,007 9,087,097
Other payables and accruals BB kg A 12,088,238 - - - 12,088,238 12,088,238
Amount due to an associate R —REE DR ZFE 287 - - - 287 287
Borrowings (Note) fas(fisE) 41,445,087 - - - 41,445,087 36,252,047
2010 “T-EF
Trade payables FETBRFR 29,394,041 - - - 29,394,041 29,394,041
Other payables and accruals Hh BB RIES R 14,136,997 - - - 14,136,997 14,136,997
Note: PFitsE -
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in B2 I AR R 2SR R R 2 R1T
the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity BEE LGB BE S AMEE K
analysis. At 31 December 2011, the aggregate undiscounted BR—FRIZKHEBERN - R=F
principal amounts of the bank loans amounted to HK$41,445,087. ——F+TZRA=+—H ' RITEFKK
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do WEASHEE XK B 41,445,087 5
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their TC © it RANEE 2 Bk AE - EF
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors FEERIT AR AT RE1T 3 H ERBNAF
believe that such bank loan will be repaid 11 years after the end of BRZBIEE - EFRE - ZERIT
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled repayment BEEGRIBEE R B HTHETER
dates set out in the loan agreements. AH RS BRI AR B EEE -
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EfERER
Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the AEEETHBRARSZEEEZFRX
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the HEERERZee((REg DR
“SFC”) and are required to comply with certain minimum & WEABEFESRAESTET
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In SIEEARFIHRE  fhoh - NEE
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital EEESEEAREAEEFE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a KE 2z ae ) - DABRRGRIRHE#R &
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders REMBERFTE AT RN - Wi
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an BREESEBIARDESHAR -

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMERZ)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 32 B&EBEEE)
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the RSB ERNGERE - NEEK
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to RBARREKNBREZEE - [
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new REFIREBE S HEBEITHRD ©
shares.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to- REEIREGE AR e
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt REMA o bt RIRERFRER L
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total FRBARTE - G FELRER
debt (including current and non-current liabilities but (BERBRIFETBDAEBRETEE
excluding current or deferred income tax liabilites as (R BRSO R P 2 BN EA SR
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) LESTHAR) RRERREEE
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital HEFHE - KABRBRABIEMER®E
comprises all components of equity (including share capital mEb o (BIEERE AR R HREET
and premium, reserves, accumulated losses and non- Pz R(E - @i - BFrEE
controlling interests as shown in the consolidated R IR )
statement of financial position).
During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged REETE_T——FHEST-FT
from 2010, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital —TFERRE - BIEABEREK
ratio within 50%. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios as at FHEERR AN R MR E50% A © IR
31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows: Z——ERZT-ZF+A=+
— B2 EBEEFHBERA L E 4
T
2011 2010
—B——% —TFF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Total debt BIETE 57,427,669 43,531,038
Less: Bank balances and cash, W IRITERRIRE
including bank trust accounts BREBITERRP &
(Note 27) (FF5E27) 46,302,258 131,892,718
Net debt (EVioE 11,125,411 -
Total equity e AR R 133,444,599 172,236,802
Adjusted capital RS 7N 133,444,599 172,236,802
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio (R R AR R At R 8% N/A  EH
BHENKRREEEERAR —Z——F5#H
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEMRER(E)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 32 E&BEREEE)
The increase in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio during R ——F  EFEEAERA
2011 resulted primarily from bank borrowings in respect g FZRREET——
of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and F+-A=+—HBLFEEHKE
investment property during the year ended 31 December Yz - MR RBEARIREDZE
2011 (Note 30). RITRE B (FIRES0) ©

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2AFEZMEE
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at TRIEHEFEDTARAFEE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have ZEMITH JRERZERMT :

been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREE B BN ER TS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHRE(RLAR)(FE—
|) o
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level . BESAENEE(ER)K
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either (B ERS ) BR 2 &
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, ABE(TBEE R 2H
derived from prices) (level 2). B EZL) -
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . BEXBELIFBEAHE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) 2B EE 28 ABE (&
(level 3). FERZHASE)(FE=
&) e
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREIR-_Z—R_F—F
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December +-—A=+—H ZRAFEFEZ
2011 and 2010. rEFBEENRERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R £ E=0 gast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 75T 7S TT BIT
2011 —B——
Held-for-trading investments 5 {EE &R E 2,110,359 — — 2,110,359
2010 —E-TF
Held-for-trading investments #H{EE &K & 3,217,558 — — 3,217,558
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 3. BBEMGERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 QAFEZME(E)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in
level 1 comprise primarily equity investments listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and classified as held-for-
trading investments.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2010: Nil).

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

EEEMSEBECEMTRAZRYF
BERHEHRERK TS RERE
E o WBRERAERATERERS
B EmE - Kiil - EXEE
BERGHEREEMBERE - M
BESEEE AFRZZEMLE
2R - M SRESERMS -
REERBZEMEECAZTS
BERRTHE - ZBTABRE
R MAE—RzITEATERR
ERINEZFZ Z LMD B AR
FEEREZBRARE -

FR - F—REE - RHRFER
EZRAYEEMABE - ML =RIT
BEMEARELH(ZT—FF :
) -

2 —FER
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3.

84

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

3. HMEBERERE)

3.4 Financial instruments by category 34 £RITHAME
The Group AEE
2011 —F——%5
Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
BRA¥E
FtAERZ B
SREE FEYFRIE #ast
HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets as per
consolidated statement of ERE ISR R
financial position ZEREE
Statutory deposits and EERE R
other assets HihEE - 575,000 575,000
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE 2,110,359 - 2,110,359
Trade receivables FEUER K - 4,514,554 4,514,554
Prepayments, deposits TENFIE - &S
and other receivables K EL A FE UK
excluding certain KB (T EIE
deposits and aETEER
prepayments TERIR) - 30,557,815 30,557,815
Amounts due from i AYNSIFEYN
associates A - 15,966,214 15,966,214
Bank balances and cash IRITHESBR MRS - 46,302,258 46,302,258
2,110,359 97,915,841 100,026,200
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBERERE)
3.4 Financial instruments by category (continued) 3.4 SEBTHSEE)
The Group (continued) AEE(E)
2011 (continued) —EB——F(E&)
Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
TR
BATEZ
=R
HK$
BT
Financial liabilites as per consolidated statement #R& BATEARITH®RKR 2
of financial position TRIEE
Trade payables FESERTR 9,087,097
Other payables and accruals E{th B 5RIE R BT 5IE
excluding accruals (TN EIEEETIE) 11,465,994
Amount due to an associate JEN — B & R Al 2 5B 287
Borrowings Bk 36,252,047
56,805,425
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBERRER(E)
3.4 Financial instruments by category (continued) 3.4 SBTHSEE)
The Group REE
2010 —ETE
Financial

assets at fair
value through  Loans and

profit or loss  receivables Total
BATE
T AEZ= Rk
L EREE FEWRIE st
HK$ HKS HK$
o BTT o
Financial assets as per consolidated #F& BFEARRE 2 &
statement of financial position REE
Statutory deposits and other assets JAFEZE K&
Ht&E — 575,000 575,000
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEKRE 3,217,558 — 3,217,558
Trade receivables UL BR K — 6,186,956 6,186,956
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFRIE ~ Re REAE
receivables excluding certain WERIA (N BiEE T
deposits and prepayments & RIEFIE) — 38,187,910 38,187,910
Amounts due from NS
associates 4R IR — 2,501,961 2,501,961
Bank balances and cash RITRBRRIRE — 181,892,718 131,892,718

3,217,668 179,344,545 182,562,103

Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
bive s
BRARETE
ZemBafE
HK$
BIT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated statement 4R & BIF&AR Rk 2
of financial position SRAE
Trade payables FERTER SR 29,394,041
Other payables and accruals L fth fE < 5RIE R FEFT 5RIE
excluding accruals (‘MEiEREETFIE) 11,221,040
40,615,081
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (“CGU”) have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

(b) Estimated impairment of intangible assets other than
goodwill
The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible assets
other than goodwill have suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. If
the recoverable amount of an intangible asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the intangible asset is reduced to its receivable amount.
The assessment of the recoverable amount requires the
use of estimates and assumptions.

(c) Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group’s management determines the impairment of
trade and other receivables on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its customers
and current market conditions. Management reassesses
the impairment of trade and other receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

EXE5HheT R FE

AEERFERBELB I EMRAREL
fAEt RAE - BRRETERTHER
CEEPASECE DT

AEBBARKEL B REBER - BREE
AR ER ERE D EERER AR
o HWT—EAVRFEZEERAGR
EEERERNFHBEZERARA 2R
RZETERIAT

(@)

(b)

(c)

AR R
S8 B R AR A2 2.8 AT 8L 2 W AT
% SERUBEATHRENDA
- ReELRN(ROELE
) 2 Bk & B R B EE
E AT A HE A
it -

fhETBRE B IMER. B E iR E

AREBIZRMEE2.9 il 2 251K
REPEZARLINBEIR - PARE
ERBEINETLEER DA EMR
BYR - WEFEEZAKREEER
AEHEREREE - BPEE LK
HEEEREHEAIKEEE - FFEA
W B EEZAEHEET R AR -

fliaT FEW AR B K fh FEW R IR R B
AEEEEE T HEE R ARR R
Hip U TR 2 RE - WIRIEERP
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T ——F+A=T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and equipment.
The Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to ascertain the
amount of depreciation charges for each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase of
these assets after considering business developments and
the Group’s strategies. The Group performs annual
reviews to assess the appropriateness of the estimated
useful lives. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results, negative
industry and economic trends. The Group extends or
shortens the useful lives and/or makes impairment
provisions according to the results of the review.

Estimated fair value of investment property

The investment property of the Group was stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.7. The fair value of the investment property is
determined by Roma Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which is subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results.

In making the judgment, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalization rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group.
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4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND EXEsHET RAIER(E)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
() Income taxes ( P
The Group is subject to income taxes in certain ARE B BRMNET BB AN Al ERE
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant judgment is &2 FTiSH - EEMSRBERS
required in determining the provision for income taxes. ZEHBEAHE - BB EKBER
There are many transactions and calculations for which BETHURERKEMIALR S R
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the FEIE c AEERBE B NI
ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes SNE R IE 2 (5t R EEMERTE
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of HMBEEMELECBE - WZE
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax FHZBRBBERERRERZ
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts SR - AEE=ESE Y EEL
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact BEREBNZ FTEE MBEER IR
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period it o
in which such determination are made.
REVENUE B
2011 2010
—FT——F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Income from provision of a trading RERZ¥E
platform WA 161,748 164,767
Commission income from securities and &% M B & &40 A&
futures brokerage A 6,123,444 13,877,575
Interest income from clients EEISITRESIS N 827,951 315,399
Net fair value (losses)/gains on BERX G2 AFE(EE)
securities trading W SR RE (1,261,117) 2,258,847
Income from provision of wealth R EEERG
management services ZWA 322,766 1,506,954
Rental income from investment property % &#3 2 & WA 985,600 —
Income from provision of stock REREE MR
information and research services AR 2 WA 5,525,699 30,865,691
12,686,091 48,989,233
SEGMENT INFORMATION SEEE

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the

execu

tive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.

The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in

order

to assess performance and allocate resources.

Management has determined the operating segments based on

these

reports.

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

TREERRECHPIABARB 2T
E=2(HTER) - MTESENLEE

ZRERHRE - AR IR EDEER
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6.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Executive Directors consider the Group has seven
reportable segments: (1) provision of a trading platform; (2)
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing services;
(8) provision of corporate finance services; (4) trading and
principal investments; (5) provision of wealth management
services; (6) property investments; and (7) provision of stock
information and research services.

The segment information of the reportable segments for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows:

SEEHE
WITEERANEEG LA RSO -
MBRERZFE : (2 RHELRESFR
EEEBERY Q) RHEXBERY
WEBEKRBERE O RHEMEEER
% @WMFERE  ROREREREEAL
BIFEARTS ©

BE-2-——F1-A=t—ALFE
ZAREDELHEARIT ¢

Brokerage

and securities Stock

Provision of margin Corporate Trading and Wealth information

a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services investments services investments services Total

R#xS SERES S BER HEEE REEARH
T8 RESMERE REMRE BERE BB MERE KR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ER BT T ER BT T &R #T
Segment revenue from external customers SREEHEMA 161,748 6,951,395 - (1,261,117 322,766 985,600 5525699 12,686,091
Segment results NEEE 9,998 (3,450,675) (300) (2533602)  (177,932) 1,325,435 (18,548,353) (23,375,429)
Net unallocated expenses AAERZFE (10,320,126)
Finance costs REMA (895,398)
Interest income FISHA 109,274
Share of losses of associates FE(LBE AR (245,543) (245,543)
Loss before income tax R ETE R A& R (34,727,222)
Income tax expense FfEBiR% (4,702,505)
Loss for the year EFNEE (39,429,727)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. NEAERE
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_Z—ZF+_HA=+—HIFE
year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows: ZAHREDE 2 HEERNT ¢
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management  and research
platform services services  investments services services Total
R#URSH REH % BEER HEER BREEARH
Ta RESHERY RE R BERE PR KR @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT iy o BT BT BT
Segment revenue from external customers HREFPHERA 164,767 14,192,974 - 2,258,847 1,506,954 30,865,691 48,989,233
Segment results PEEE 13,127 (2,239,447) (5,240) 777,631 (249,943) (154,794,229) (156,498,101)
Net unallocated expenses ROERZFE (39,430,613)
Finance costs RERAK (685,937)
Interest income FSMA 223,162
Impairment of goodwil ARANE (53,811,784)  (53,811,784)
Share of losses of associates [E(EEEE A RIEE (364,161) (364,161)
Loss before income tax BRETSFi A1 (250,567,434)
Income tax credt FEBES 31,927,626
Loss for the year FREBE (218,639,808)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December HE_ZT—F+t-A=1+—HLFE
2011 is as follows: Z B BRERT
Brokerage and
securities Stock
Provision of margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services  investments services  investments services  Unallocated Total
R#xS LERES S EER HEER REEARGT
T8 RESAMERE BERE BERE PR MERE MR RPE 5y
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Depreciation and amortization HEREH - 359,540 - 244,839 5,521 - 2,177,535 2,421,282 5,208,717
Impairment of other receivables AU IERIE - - - - - - - 4,714,937 4,714,937
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueqd) 6. wEAERE
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_ZE-TFT_A=T—HILFE
2010 is as follows: ZEMOTEERMT ¢
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management and research
platform services services  investments services services  Unallocated Total
R#ERS IR RES ¥ BER HEEE REEMRH
T RECHERYE BERS BERE R RRB A st
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT o BT BT BT o oy
Depreciation and amortization HEREH = 997,622 = 187,663 80,230 7,183,540 1,054,001 9,502,956
Impairment of goodwil HERNE - - - - — 53811784 — 53811784
Impairment of intangible assets BYAERE - - - - — 131,026,047 — 131,026,047
Impairment of trade receivables FEMRER TR A - - - - - 120,049 - 120,049
Impairment of other receivables it ERFORRE - - - - - 1537454 - 1537454
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and DEEETZERME  HERRE
equipment, investment property, intangible assets, statutory WEYE - BEE - RS RHEAM
deposits and other assets, investments in associates, held-for- BE - RBERRIZKRE  BEEEXR
trading investments, trade and other receivables, and bank & EUWERFR - TERFUE - e M EAM
balances and cash. Segment liabilities comprise operating JE W FR I8 LA &fﬁﬁ ERKLIEE - DA
liabilities. ERELCEAE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueqd) 6. NEAERE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+_A=T—HzZH A&
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: ERBENEEZAIIFEZ2EARY
LU
Brokerage and
securities Stock
Provision of margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
a trading financing finance principal management Property and research
platform services services  investments services  investments services  Unallocated Total
R#xS SERES o HER HEEE BRRENRH
F8  RESAMARE HERE BERA ;354 WERA KRR RHE E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EX ET ET ET #T #T #T #T #T
Segment assets NEEE 83,018 30,633,896 113,083 3,739,051 568,069 42,261,718 62,434,243 53,742,448 193,575,526
Investments in associates N NG - - - 647,842 - - 1,028,234 - 1,676,076
83,018 30,633,896 113,083 4,386,893 568,069 42,261,718 63,462,477 53,742,448 195,251,602
Segment liabilities AEAE 933 5,973,676 - 67,671 99,633 18,854,831 9,785,979 27,024,280 61,807,003
Capital expenditure Yk
Additions of property, plant and REWE « HER
equipment b3 - 27,390 - 18,620 - - 115,684 41,076,174 41,237,868
Additions of investment property  REREWE - - - - - 41,755,500 - - 41,755,500
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 and RZE—EFF+_A=+T—HZHEE
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: ERGEREEZBLEFEZERARAT
LUl
Brokerage and Stock
Provision of a  securities margin Corporate  Trading and Wealth information
trading financing finance principal  management Property  and research
platform services services investments services investments services Unallocated Total
R#HRS B hER =3 BER MEER BREERR
Fa RECRERS BERS BERE &% NERE IR AAE it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT o o
Segment assets NEEE 73,456 63,688,267 213,383 1,750,318 853,674 = 72,491,601 76,028,085 215,098,784
Investments in associates N NG - - - - - - 669,056 - 669,056
73,456 63,688,267 213,383 1,750,318 853,674 = 73,160,657 76,028,085 215,767,840
Segment liabilities AEAE 1,369 29,888,691 = = 153,686 = 11,877,369 1,609,923 43,531,038
Capital expenditure A%
Additions of property, plant and REME « HER
equipment B - 60,725 - - 11,564 - 1,863,108 1,752,012 3,687,409
Additions of intangible assets NEEVAE - - = = = - 3,628,967 - 3,628,967
BENKRAKREEAERAR —T——FF§
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

6.

nEEH(E)
FEBEENEBREIKE -

2011 2010
—F—%5 —T-TF
HK$ HK$
&I BIT
Revenue o 20
Hong Kong B8 8,351,769 15,457,869
The PRC EP 4,334,322 33,531,364
12,686,091 48,989,233
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the WHIEREREBRRE D
customer is located.
2011 2010
-5 —E-EF
HK$ HK$
&I BIT
Total assets BEHE
Hong Kong BB 128,509,051 142,010,401
The PRC s 65,066,475 73,088,383
193,575,526 215,098,784
Investments in associates N /N = 1,676,076 669,056
195,251,602 215,767,840

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are
located.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

BEREREEMERE S -



|
)

; G : e | MH ég?iﬁ;x
ol B SLERISS MEGESL &, | i 5% &
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMFERFTME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SE&ERE)
2011 2010
—T——5 —E-FF
HK$ HK$
&I VBT
Capital expenditure BXRHZ
Hong Kong BB 82,859,064 1,812,737
The PRC s 134,304 5,508,639
82,993,368 7,316,376
Capital expenditure is allocated on where the assets are located. BARRSIREEREME| D -
Information about major customers FEEER &8
No customer contributed 10% or more of total revenue during BHE - ZE——F+_-_A=+—RHIF=F
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). B WERR(EEIMA10% KA F(=F
—ZF |\
7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hiths
2011 2010
—g——k —T-TF
HK$ HK$
T BT

Gain on disposal of property, plant and &Y% - #eS KRR

equipment ZWzs 258,765 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z W 3,971,794 2,161,965
Gain arising on change in fair value of REWE N FEZFFRELZ
investment property Wz 344,500 =
Gain on sales of software to an A — KB A | B B8R
associate Z Wz 1,030,971 —
5,606,030 2,161,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_Z——FT-A=1T—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME HA
2011 2010
—T——5 —E-FF
HK$ HK$
I o
Advertising service income ESRF WA 1,025,034 =
CCASS fee income RREEZGERRA 858,134 1,398,768
Handling fee income FEBWA 188,660 129,811
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF B A 109,272 222 911
Other interest income E A F) SHA 2 251
Sundry income FIEWA 1,215,985 430,167
3,397,087 2,181,908
9. FINANCE COSTS RERAE
2011 2010
—T—%F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
I o
Interest expenses on: FERX

Bank borrowings wholly repayable AR—FRNBEER 2
within one year fEfﬂ%?ﬁ( 785 685,937

Bank borrowings not wholly repayable 78 1 ¥ 2 Hf fS 45 5 A

within one year from the end of the BT —FRTBEEE

reporting period but contain a BEREsEEXERZ
repayment on demand clause &R RITIBEK 894,613 —
895,398 685,937

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_Z——FT-A=1T—HIEFE
10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFTiRHiAIRSE
2011 2010
—T——5 —E-FF
HK$ HK$
HETT o
Loss before income tax has been BETER RSB, (GEA)
arrived at after charging/(crediting): THEIE
Auditors’ remuneration 2% E8 R 500,000 750,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant and &Y « #ENEREZ
equipment g - 30,945
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMHE K&
rented premises Giskoyiske 4,712,371 7,498,227
Rental income net of outgoings in HERA - ENBRIREVFEER
respect of investment property (597,700) —
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 11. ESEFBEX
2011 2010
—T—%5 —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BIT 7B
Wages and salaries TENES 16,608,354 31,562,582
Share options granted to directors and RTEEREE 2
employees B - 23,382,573
Pension costs — defined contribution BREKAN - ERR
schemes G2 214,860 248,015
Employee benefits expenses, including 1EE@FIFY » B
directors’ remuneration = 16,823,214 55,193,170

BEEMERKXEEERLE =T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEiS
Year ended 31 December 2011 BFE—_F——F+-_HA=1+—HIEE
Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s

and benefits contributions
in kind to pension

Name of director Note Fees (Note viii) scheme Total
e 2R BHs
BEYfz TEIZEE
EENa k=3 ik (Bt &viii) 5 “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T T

Executive directors

BITES

Mr. Wang Wenming — 1,200,000 12,000 1,212,000
IXHREE

Mr. Lee Yiu Sun - 1,200,000 12,000 1,212,000
FREFT R A

Non-executive director

EHITES

Mr. Liu Runtong (i) - - — -
2R EE

Independent non-executive directors

BIEBITES

Professor Zhang Benzheng 128,809 — — 128,809
SR TE %

Mr. Zhang Fei Ze (ii) 29,032 - - 29,032
RAOESLE

Dr. Tsang Hing Lun (iv) - - — -
LEBEL

Mr. Tony | Tong (v) 95,098 - - 95,098
EEEE

Mr. Li Jianxing (v) 91,290 - - 91,290
FRITRE

Mr. Wu Du Yong (Vi) 10,870 - - 10,870
REKEE

Mr. Chen Shu Wen (vii) 32,667 - - 32,667
BRABI S SE A

387,766 2,400,000 24,000 2,811,766
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2010

12. EEME(Z)
BE—_F—FF+_A=1+—HIEE

M\

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits in to pension
Name of director Note Fees kind (Note viii) scheme Total
e 2K
EYm  RAREHEIZ
EEMA k3 Lk (B =T viii) BEHX #Et
HKS HKS HKS HKS
T BT BT BT
Executive directors
BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming = 4,262,004 12,000 4,274,004
FXRREAE
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun = 9,650,919 12,000 9,562,919
RIS E
Non-executive director
FEHRITES
Mr. Liu Runtong (i) 264,000 8,350,919 — 8,614,919
2EREE
Independent non-executive directors
BIFHITESE
Professor Zhang Benzheng 125,000 556,728 = 681,728
SRAN TE %
Mr. Zhang Fei Ze (i) 74,301 — — 74,301
RAROESLE
Mr. Yen Jong Ling (iii) 30,000 — — 30,000
BhRiE
Dr. Tsang Hing Lun (iv) 130,000 835,092 — 965,092
LEREL
623,301 23,555,662 24,000 24,202,963
BENKRAKREEAERAR —T——FF§
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 12. EEM&(Z
Notes: Fff%E
i) Appointed on 2 February 2010. i) NZZE-ZTFE_A-_RAREEFE-
(ii) Appointed on 20 May 2010 and resigned on 28 March 2011. (ii) REZE—ZFRA-THEZARR=-Z—

—F=A=+N\BEHE -

(i) Resigned on 31 March 2010. (ii) R=E—ZTF=FA=+—HEfE-

(iv) Resigned on 6 January 2011. (iv) RZT——F—ANBEE -

(v) Appointed on 28 March 2011. (v) R-B——E=B -+ \BEEEF-

(vi) Appointed on 20 May 2011 and resigned on 21 June 2011. (vi) R-E——FRA-+HAEZERR=_Z—

—FRAZT—HEHE

(vi)  Appointed on 23 September 2011. Vi) RZZE——FAA-+=REZEE-

(vii)  Benefits in kind include share option. No share options were granted to (vii) EVFZeEERE #E-T——F+=
the directors of the Company under the Company’s share option scheme A=+—RHIFE  EBEREREAARE
during the year ended 31 December 2011. During the year ended 31 REFEMBETARARES - REBEE-T—
December 2010, 76,000,000 share options with an aggregate fair value of TFET_A=+—HILFE  FEBEREX
HK$21,155,661 were granted by the Group to the directors of the AR BEREFERAQRAESTEH
Company under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. 76,000,000 0 ME RFELES

21,155,661 7T °

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FA - AREVERAES N EAME
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or YER IR S| A0 B Sk P N BB AN 5% B A 2 2R R
as compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil). None of the HERHMBHE(CT—TF  8) - F
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the A BEREEHEIRTHRETAHE
year (2010: Nil). (ZZ=—ZF:8|)-

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE
13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include two (2010: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 12. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three individuals (2010: one individual) for the
year are as follows:

13.

hEmEHFAL
AEEREGESHFALBIERE(ZE—
TFWR)ES  HEZHEFBRR
iEE12 - FANENSBT=R(=ZZT—F
F o —Z)ALZBE0T

2011 2010
%5 —E-TF
HK$ HKS$
BIT BIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMK
kind EYF= 1,386,000 1,459,092
Pension costs — defined contribution ~ RIREAA — FEFBHER
scheme BEl 36,000 12,000
1,422,000 1,471,092
Their emoluments fell within the following bands: BEZMENTFLATEE :
2011 2010
%5 —E-TF
Number of Number of
individuals individual
EEAE BEEAZ
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,000/& 7T - 1
3 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2010:
Nil).

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

FRN AEEYEANRAERSHFALX
FHERI BN (F 2 W 5| B sl AN B AR 5=
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

14. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 14.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as the
Group incurred a tax loss for the year (2010: Nil). Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

Frife#i (FZ) %R
ERFERAAFENESELESRE
BB 2T R AR E 16.5% (=
T—F : 16.5%):TE - ARAEER
AEEEARBKER QMW EREEF
SHRMERRIELBE(ZE—ZF
£2) o FINRF 2 IBIR AL B XTSI E
BRERERZME - LFEEATER
T AT o

102

2011 2010
—F——5 —T—TF
HK$ HK$
&I v
Current income tax: BVEARTIS A
Current tax on profits for the year FEFE 2 EBHRIA
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMEFH - =
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PRGN - =
Underprovision in previous years RBEFERETR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENEH - —
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — FRBETSH 323,171 =
323,171 —
Total current tax BNHEATR B 48 RE 323,171 =
Deferred income tax (Note 31): BEIEFTS B (MIEES1)
Current year KEE 4,379,334 —
Reversal of temporary differences BECI R = FE - (31,927,626)
Income tax expense/(credit) FTis#ims(ER) 4,702,505 (31,927,626)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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14. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued) 14. FiRB(FX) BR(E)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the WA A T BB EHE16.5% (ZF—
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits TE 16.5%)5TE + ANEB ZBRATEH
Tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) as follows: RIEETIA S R IE R R A
2011 2010
—T—%5 —E-THF
HK$ HK$
&I 7570
Loss before income tax B P 1545 Bl 5 18 (34,727,222) (250,567,434)

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits BEBNEHZE16.5% (=T —

Tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) TF 1 16.5%)FTH 2 FiIA (5,729,992) (41,343,627)

Tax effect of: LATRIEE 2 g2
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries — REMAEERL S Z KB

operating in other jurisdictions RNEIZ R R (1,651,243) (10,417,363)
— Income not subject to tax — BAEZRBA (289,049) (512,251)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — BBIEEAAA

purposes R 2 9,833,370 44,756,847
— Others — Efth 2,216,248 7,516,394
— Reversal of deferred tax liabilities — REFIES FEHE - (31,927,626)
— Underprovision in previous years — BEFEREITRE 323,171 —
Tax charge/(credit) FIERS (#ER) 4,702,505 (31,927,626)

15. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 15. XRATHAEAEEEE

COMPANY
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in RARBMERREEZARARES A
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of JE(RE1E 56,472,389 T (— T — T4 ¢
HK$6,472,389 (2010: HK$255,458,795). 255,458,795/ 7T )

EERCAREBERAT —T——F5H 103
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L 2

For the year ended 31 December 2011

16.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011 of HK$37,855,857 (2010: loss of
HK$215,332,026) by the weighted average number of
3,955,5639,462 (2010: 3,520,893,208) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2011 did not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 since their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - B REE

Office
equipment
Land and Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Group *£6 buildings improvements furniture  equipment vehicles Total
it S T Q
THREF MERE REREHR  SHERE RE @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
A B B B 7 A7
As at 1 January 2010 R=F8-F£—A—H
Cost A - 3,394,128 10,428,123 3,072,395 3,245,661 20,140,307
Accumulated depreciation ZEME = (1,762,553)  (2,440,889) (2,086,653) (634,792)  (6,824,887)
Net book amount REFE — 1,631,575 7,987,234 985,742 2,710,869 13,315,420
Year ended HECS-¥F
31 December 2010 +=ZA=+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount BREFE — 1,631,575 7,987,234 985,742 2,710,869 13,315,420
Additions NE - 92,966 1,424,851 81,325 2,088,267 3,687,409
Exchange differences fE % =5 - 14,718 249,623 4,159 83,683 352,183
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHRBAR — = (23,813) (31,953) — (55,766)
Disposals HE — — (74,234) (9,077) - (83,311)
Depreciation neE — (845,683) (2,194,591)  (890,640)  (971,137) (4,702,051)
Closing net book amount HRIREFE — 893,576 7,369,070 339,556 3,911,682 12,513,884
As at RZF-%%
31 December 2010 +=ZA=+-H
Cost A - 2,768,359 11,864,386 2,795,124  5446,831 22,874,700
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE - (1,874,783)  (4,495,316) (2,455,568) (1,535,149) (10,360,816)
Net book amount HREHE — 893,576 7,369,070 339,556 3,911,682 12,513,884
Year ended BE_F——F§
31 December 2011 +ZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HRREHE - 893,576 7,369,070 339,556 3,911,682 12,513,884
Additions R 40,327,455 678,000 205,023 27,390 — 41,237,868
Exchange differences fEHER - 15,462 264,387 - 90,880 370,729
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (94,869) - - (94,869)
Disposals HE - (167,650) (13,671) - - (181,321)
Depreciation neE (1,478,838) (430,587) (1,892,133)  (305,301) (1,101,858) (5,208,717)
Closing net book amount R FE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
As at R-E——f&
31 December 2011 +-A=t+-H
Cost A 40,327,455 2,275,078 14,077,615 883,003 5,769,962 63,333,113
Accumulated depreciation e (1,478,838) (1,286,277) (8,239,808)  (821,358) (2,869,258) (14,695,539)
Net book amount HREHE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
Note: B3
As at 31 December 2011, land and buildings with a carrying value of R=F——F+=-A=+—H - REE/R38848,617

B2 —2F : )2 - RETEREERRA
K@ RITEF(HIRES0)

HK$38,848,617 (2010: Nil) was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the
Group (Note 30).
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. P -« WBRREE)

AN

Office
equipment
Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Company AAF improvements furniture  equipment vehicles Total
HE HWAZ
YiERE RERGH  BEREG RE @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2010 R=F-F£—-A-H
Cost 5% 1,160,890 345,672 640,384 — 2,146,946
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (451,455)  (142,706)  (499,785) —  (1,093,946)
Net book amount REFE 709,435 202,966 140,599 — 1,053,000
Year ended BECS-%BF
31 December 2010 +ZA=+—-HLLFE
Opening net book amount HRREFE 709,435 202,966 140,599 — 1,053,000
Additions NE = = 20,600 1,731,412 1,752,012
Depreciation & (386,963  (110,397)  (75,693)  (480,948) (1,054,001)
Closing net book amount HRIRRFE 322,472 92,569 85,506 1,250,464 1,751,011
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-BF+-A=1+-H
Cost AR 1,160,890 343,592 536,003 1,731,412 3,771,897
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (838,418)  (251,023)  (450,497)  (480,948) (2,020,886)
Net book amount REEE 322,472 92,569 85506 1,250,464 1,751,011
Year ended BE-E——F
31 December 2011 +-A=t—-BI1LFE
Opening net book amount HRmFE 322,472 92,569 85,506 1,250,464 1,751,011
Additions ANE 678,000 89,338 - - 767,338
Disposals e (161,235) (6,532) - - (167,767)
Depreciation & (207,568)  (93,468)  (69,791)  (577,137)  (947,964)
Closing net book amount HRIREFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
As at 31 December 2011 R-¥——&+-A=+-H
Cost B 678,000 191,511 295407 1,731,412 2,896,330
Accumulated depreciation ZEthE (46,331)  (109,604)  (279,692) (1,058,085) (1,493,712)
Net book amount REFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
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18.

\ |

-

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. HEME
The Group
AEEH
2011 2010
—F—5 —T-TF
HK$ HKS$
&TT BIT
At the beginning of year REH - =
Addition NE 41,755,500 —
Changes in fair value NEEES) 344,500 =
At end of the year RELR 42,100,000 —

@)

Investment property held under long-term leases in Hong
Kong amounting to HK$42,100,000 (2010: Nil) was valued
at 31 December 2011 on an open market value basis by
Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professional
valuers. Valuation is based on market value assessment
approach.

As at 31 December 2011, an investment property with a
carrying value of HK$42,100,000 (2010: Nil) was pledged
to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (Note 30).

EEEUERBBEOFEE 2
42,100,000 B (ZE—Z4F : )
WAV ERB LB HERMES R
BRI GEERARR_E——F+=
BA=+—B&RBARMEETH
B o HETKEMEN GET

N-TE——F+=-A=1+—H " B
ME{E 542,100,000 T (ZE—=
F o E)ZIREYES BIEERHA
B 2 RITEK(MIFES0) ©

BEEMERKXEEERLE =T —FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B|EEE
The Group F5E Goodwill Website Software  Trading rights Total
HE bk B RoE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2010 R=%-%¥F¥-A-H
Cost XA 682,538,960 134,059,833 - 3,592,000 820,190,793
Accumulated amortization and 2R
impairment WfE (635,784,473 (3,723,834) - (3,591,998  (643,100,355)
Net book amount BEFE 46,754,487 130,335,949 — 2 177,090,438
Year ended BE-T-F£+ZA
31 December 2010 =+—BILEE
Opening net book amount FONREFE 46,754,487 130,335,949 = 2 177,090,438
Adjustment to the cost of the BEFEEEL
business combination in prior B AR
years (Note (vi) (FizE(vi) 6,281,743 - - - 6,281,743
Acaquisition of a subsidiary WE—RMBAR
(Note 35(b)) (FI7£35(0)) 81,372 = = = 81,372
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR - - = (1) (1)
Addition NE = - 3,628,967 — 3,628,967
Exchange differences EHEE 775,554 1,862,036 - - 2,637,590
Amortization charge BT - (4,535,677) (265,228) - (4,800,905)
Impairment charge (Note i) RES () (53811,784)  (127,662,308) (3,363,739) —  (184,837,831)
Closing net book amount BRI FE 81,372 - - 1 81,373
As at R-B-B&
31 December 2010 +=A=+-H
Cost XA 689,677,629 135,921,869 3,628,967 2,724,000 831,952,465
Accumulated amortization and BETEER
impairment A (689,596,257)  (135,921,869) (3,628,.967) (2,723999)  (831,871,092)
Net book amount REFE 81,372 - - 1 81,373
Year ended 8EZ-F——%1+=A
31 December 2011 =t+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 81,372 - - 1 81,373
Exchange differences fEHER 3,436 - - - 3,436
Closing net book amount HIREREH(E 84,808 - - 1 84,809
As at R-T——%&
31 December 2011 +=-A=+-H
Cost A 689,681,065 135,921,869 3,628,967 2,724,000 831,955,901
Accumulated amortization and ZETH#EK
impairment RE (689,596,257) (135,921,869) (3,628,967) (2,723,999) (831,871,092)
Net book amount REFE 84,808 - - 1 84,809

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueq) 19. EBREEE
Notes: P 5E -

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”) which is
principally engaged in the provision of stock information and research
services in the PRC. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the value-in-use calculations uses
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. The key assumptions used for
the cash flow projections include budgeted revenue and budgeted
expenses during the forecasting periods, which are determined by
management based on past performance and its expectation of market
development. Cash flows beyond that five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 1%. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the industry in which the CGU
operates. All cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of 3%
which reflects the specific risks relating to this CGU.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based on the
value-in-use calculation.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the value-in-use calculations uses
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. The key assumptions used for
the cash flow projections include budgeted revenue and budgeted
expenses during the forecasting periods, which are determined by
management based on past performance and its expectation of market
development. Cash flows beyond that five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 3%. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the industry in which the CGU
operates. All cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of
17.86% which reflects the specific risks relating to this CGU.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based on the
value-in-use calculation and with reference to a valuation carried out by an
independent professional valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited.

The impairment charges of the website and software of HK$127,662,308
and HK$3,363,739 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2010
was resulted in the reassessment of the future profitability of the Group’s
subsidiaries principally engaged in the provision of stock information and
research services in the PRC. The reassessment was made in light of
tightened policy of the PRC government on regulating the securities and
investment consultancy sector of the PRC in which the Group’s operates,
which was relatively less favourable to foreign enterprise’s participation.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2011 represent two trading rights in
the Stock Exchange.

BEY

MEAREEEEZNT R FEREERREE
ARARER 2 REELEM(REELE
7)) - BeEE BN 2 AT E SR T 6E A
BEE -

HE_T——F+-A=+—HItFE &
REEERREEELERERFHRZ
FIHRIRE - RARHARSRERAET o
RenB8RARAZIERREBEERER
BERRRARN S EREE 2 BAHRE
BWRKFRER - AFALBEZRER
EAAFHERE1%BHE o ZILRE W EBE
ReELBUMBITRZ RPTFHERE -
BB SR ELRTAITRERI%IH - AR
BREIZIR S A B ARR AR o

RERAREEEZEREEME

BE_ZZE+_A=+—HILFE &
REEFEZREERIERENFHRZ
FIHRRE - KARHAR S RERAET -
RenERARAZIEZERREETERER
BERRRARN SR RETE 2 B HRE
HWHERBAEMYX - AFALHEZRER
BURBFHERKRINHER o ZIBRELEER
RAeELEMMBITRIRAFHEREER -
FAERSREBRRBAITIRE17.86%HH -
VAR IR B2 230 0 B A B AR R SR E R ©

BERAREEEREREEYSZBIH
EAERMARERTEERARETZAE

B -

HE—_ZT-TE+_A=+—RHIFEZR
uh RERES B A 127,662,308 T K&
3,363,739 T « JIHAREMASEFEES
B EREEARMEREZHMBAR 2K
REFNEE S FER - A RBEE To A fE A B BT
WEHAEEMEE 2P EFHFRIEEBER
EZBRMET  AERTERERS|IINE
2 o

R-B——F+-A=+—HZXZHEEM
R PTR HE

MEEEERAT —ZT— —FF§
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. EWEEE)

(iv) On 3 March 2009, the Group entered into a series of control agreements (iv) R-ZTNE=ZA=A  AEEFZ—F7
to acquire control of JRYIERFAAXLEREBRAR (transliterated as ZE I - SR ER R UL EE
Shenzhen Sky Picture Culture Communications Company Limited and its BRARREWB AR ZESIE - B Ltk
subsidiary. The related goodwill arising from the aforesaid acquisition MBE 4+ 2 BRERgE 518,654,487 7T ©
amounted to HK$18,654,487.

v) The website hosting an interactive financial video channel called Stock (v) — (AR AIRTELR |2 58I EREIaET)
Online (BXT7E48) was acquired through the acquisition of Shenzhen Sky BRI BREE UL EEER AR
Picture Culture Communications Company Limited. e

(vi) The amounts represented the adjustments to the contingent consideration (vi) BRNIBRRERZZHHETIE T I&4T
for the acquisition of the GoHi Group during the year ended 31 December REBE=—TT+F+-A=1T—HILFEK
2007 due to the fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the #EGoHi Holdings LimitedZ St ANREIEL 2
agreements, which resulted in the issue of the Consideration Shares, the AE - AAARERETRERD - BRE
Option and the Bonus Shares. RATRR ©

(vii) The software as at 31 December 2011 represents Stock Online First Stock (vii) BEZT——F+A=1+—"HBHEHIE
Search Software (GEARTELRE —HERRE(H). [EARTEARSE — 1R BNE] -

20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 20. EEZRERHEMEE

The Group

A5KE
2011 2010
—F——F —E-F
HK$ HK$
BIT BT

Hong Kong Securities Clearing EBRREEERAT]
Company Limited (“‘HKSCC”) ([ EBEE))

— Contribution fund deposit — REELEZRS 100,000 100,000

— Admission fee deposit — WnELS 100,000 100,000

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BAEBER ST

Limited BRAF

— Compensation fund deposit — BEESES 100,000 100,000

— Fidelity fund deposit — ERESES 100,000 100,000

— Stamp duty deposit — HfERiRS 75,000 75,000

The Securities and Futures Commission &8 r&5 M

of Hong Kong EEREREES
— Deposits for responsible officers — BEAERKS 100,000 100,000
575,000 575,000

1 1 O First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. MRMBATZIRE

The Company

AAT]

2011 2010

—ET—% —T-TF

HK$ HKS$

I BIT

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - A 4,771,262 4,771,262
Less: Impairment loss recognized B ERBEETE 2 —
4,771,260 4,771,262

FRE iy 2 FE 11 Bt B A SIRRIE

AAR B —RKBAREKRES
23,071,552 87T  Ti %R RERF|
K225 B FFERFB(ZE—FF ¢
#2) 0 BRILIASN © RAR BB AR R T
BTN 2 FE R K A~ B I A ) R I 1) A 4
B 2B RBERERER -

Amounts due from and due to subsidiaries

Except for an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$23,071,552
which is interest bearing at prime rate of commercial banks
minus 2.25% per annum (2010: Nil), the amounts due from and
due to subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s statement of
financial position are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

WTAR-_ZE—F+-_A=+—HZ
KRR EBKHBRAGIRE @ FTHEZEH

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2011, all of which are wholly-owned by the

Group: BARYHRASEZERS !
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued
establishment and kind of Principal activities and place of  share capital/

Name legal entity operations registered capital
ML, B TIRE

=55 FRIIHhEG ek E B AR AA R TEEBRBEME, M EAEE

First China Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited

First China Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited

Stockmartnet Limited

SRIEBRAR

First China Financial Capital Limited

BESRBMEBRAR

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
KBRS
BRAR

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

&% BRAR

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

&% BRAR

Investment holding

REER

Securities trading in Hong Kong

REBUEFESFHEE

Provision of corporate finance

services in Hong Kong

REBRE DS XA R

BEEMERKREBFRLF

611,700 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

611,700 FAREIE
1ET 2 LBk

3 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

SR EREE
18T 2 Eimak

2,400,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

2,400,000/% Z AR E &
1B 2 TR

—E-—FER 111
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21.

——F+=A=+—ALFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

21. RHBASZIRE(E)

Principal activities and place of

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Name legal entity operations registered capital
AL, B TIRA

& RIS Rk E AR AR FEREREERES M RAFE

First China Securities Limited Hong Kong, Securities brokerage and securities 57,000,000 ordinary

BEESFARAH

First China Processing Services Limited

First China Processing
Services Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

First China Global Wealth Management Limited

BERREVARAF

First China Property Limited

BHEMEARAF

First China Estates Company Limited

BEBEXARAA

Aceview International Limited

HEERBRAR

GoHi Holdings Limited

GoHi Holdings Limited

BEES

Co., Ltd.)
BEFFFACRINERAR

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

ORI BR AT (transliterated as
First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen)

Limited liability company

&% - BRAAE

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company
&% ARAQA

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
REBRAHS
BRAT

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company
EE  BRAT

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company
BE - BRAA

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

&% BRAR

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
RBREIHS
ERAT

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability company
EEEIHE
BRAF]

PRC,
Foreign wholly-owned
enterprise

R 2HNEDE

margin financing services in Hong
Kong

REBREEFLFEL R
EHRE DR E R

Provision of a trading platform in
Hong Kong

REBRUZZ T A

Investment holding

REZER

Provision of wealth management
services in Hong Kong

REBRNN B EE RS

Property investment

MERE

Property holding

ESEEZES

Investment holding

REERK

Investment holding

RAER

Provision of stock information and

research services in the PRC

R B AR L
BREE A R T RS

shares of HK$1 each

57,000,000 i FEI{&
17T 2 ik

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2B AR EE
1B 2 Bk

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

1R REE
1R BB

6,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

6,000,000 &R EE
17T 2 ik

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each

1 REREET BT
il

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each

1 REREET BT
il

1 ordinary share of US$
1 each

1REREE
1R 2 LB

35,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

35,0008 B AR &
152 EEk

Registered capital of
RMB40,000,000

EMERRARE
40,000,0007T
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21. PRMBASZRE(E
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued
establishment and kind of Principal activities and place of  share capital/
Name legal entity operations registered capital
=ML, EBITRA
&8 FRIIHhEG Rk E B AR AE R EEEBRBEME, R4S
FYNERZHEXBEHEBR AR (formerly known PRC, Investment holding and provision of  Registered capital of
as “FHEXRFEEEBER AR (translterated  Limited liability company development and design of TV RMB3,000,000
as Shenzhen Sky Picture Culture programs and artwork in the PRC

Communications Company Limited (formerly
known as “Shenzhen Sky Picture
Communications Company Limited”) (Note)

FIERZEULEERR AR (AIBDRNEX  FEH - BRAF] R R EER - FAER ZMELRAE
AR EEARRR ) () RETERE B REM AR #3,000,0007T
= BREERITAR AR (transliterated as PRC, Development and sales of software  Registered capital of
Shenzhen Wealth Alliance Networking Limited liability company for information network equipment, RMB10,000,000
Company Limited) (“Wealth Alliance”) (Note) terminal products and calculators
in the PRC
AIE BEERIMBRAR FE - BRAA A R B 2 B S AR AR e A R TMERR
=) 4 RuhEm KRt EES AR #10,000,0007T
Note: The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly held by fzr . A ZBRARBARKRANEE T ESMIES
an individual nominee on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% EZZEMB AR ZRAEZ  NEEFE
effective interest in these subsidiaries. ZEM B A T)100%E BRI ©
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the PRI EERREAEEFENEE
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of BREZEZE L MBAR - EFRA -
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the FHAEMMB AR 2 EREESRIRRA
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. RILEK °
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, REEATZI/E
The Group
FEHE
2011 2010
-5 —T-FF
HK$ HK$
&I BIT
Beginning of the year F4) 669,056 1,001,131
Additions NE 1,229,830 —
Exchange differences ME =58 22,733 32,086
Share of losses FEfRE1E (245,543) (364,161)
End of the year FIR 1,676,076 669,056
Market values of listed shares EmikHmE N/A Fi#EH N/A i B

EEDEREEBERAT —T— —FFR 113
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HE_Z——FT-A=1T—HIEFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REBEATZ/EE)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2011 are R-E——F+_-_A=+—8  ~&H
as follows: ko l/N =3 (N
Particulars of issued Interest
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities shares held held
FifsE T Fi¥s
E1 SEM AR I3 B EEES B M
A TR AR E R AR PRC, Development and sales of software  Registered capital of 50%

Limited liability company

for information network equipment,

RMB2,000,000

114

terminal products and calculators
in the PRC

YT R MBI A R A A HE - BRAF] P BRI B R S S B AR AR HMERBARE 50%
REZEME - BImEm R 2,000,0007C
STE

I B iR BT AR AR PRC, Development and sales of software Registered capital of 40%

Limited liability company for information network equipment, RMB1,000,000
terminal products and calculators

in the PRC

Y B B E BRI AR AR e BRAF] AP B 5 3 I SH E B A AR AR AMERRARE 40%
BB T - BIRERR 1,000,0007T
e

FIIE A ERIEE /R AR PRC, Development and sales of software Registered capital of 14%

Limited liability company for information network equipment RMB7,000,000

in the PRC

A A BRI E G RA A HE - BRAF R B RIHE B MAARRET 2 AfERRARE 14%
C/GS 7,000,0007T

The following is the summarized financial information in respect TRERAEERES NGB ZHBER T

Z IRBEHE_TTER_ZT—
—Ft A=t -"HLEFEZAEERZ
ERRENEAMUBER

of the Group’s associates as extracted from unaudited
management accounts or published financial information for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011:

2011 2010

—ET——fF —T—TF

HK$ HKS$

BT BT

Assets BE 17,137,346 5,313,398
Liabilities afE 14,037,559 3,059,584
Revenues ek 778,350 5,050,765
Losses 518 7,421,120 903,643

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22,
Amounts due from and due to associates
As at 31 December 2011, the amounts due from and due to
associates are unsecured, interest-free, denominated in RMB
and repayable on demand.

REFEATZIRE(E)

FEWERE AT RIE R EREE ATKRIF
RZZE——F+-A=+—H  EYE
BRRRIARENBE QR RASEL
2B MARBIERERERE

o

B

23. INVENTORIES 23. B
The Group
%M
2011 2010
—F——% —T—TF
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Finished goods B i 140,514 41,289
24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24. BEEERE
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
-5 —EEF
HK$ HKS
BT P TT
Equity securities listed on the Shenzhen FOFRIIEFHRZ 5 AT ETH 2 BAE
Stock Exchange at market value HIRmE 2,110,359 3,217,558

The fair value of the above equity securities was based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

BENEH

FRBRAE S A FEREERELR
M5 BREME -

BEBAERRXE —ZT——FFH

& AN
: %

N\
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. FEUERFR

The Group
AEEH
2011 2010
—F—5 —T-TF
HK$ HKS$
I BIT
Amounts receivable arising from BHICLEBFIESE
Securities broking: FEURGRIA
Margin clients RBESEP 1,487,893 848,149
Cash clients REEP 2,908,309 2,319,204
Brokers and dealers LAD R 6 6
HKSCC (net) BEREE(FE) - 2,730,025
Other trade receivables E b pEURBR SR 118,346 412,764
4,514,554 6,310,148
Less: provision for impairment of trade i : FEUERRK
receivables SRUERHE - (123,192)
Trade receivables, net FEUSHRSR - JFEE 4,514,554 6,186,956

As at 31 December 2010, the other trade receivables included
an amount due from non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$172,000. The amount is unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, and repayable on demand.

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable on
demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates and are
secured by clients’ pledged securities which are listed on the
Stock Exchange with a total market value of approximately
HK$1,297,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$32,497,000).
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors,
the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of the business of securities margin financing.

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date, and those of amounts receivable arising from
futures broking are one trade day after the trade execution date.
Except for the amounts receivable from margin clients as
mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30 days.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEMARTR(#=Z)

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$123,192 RZZE—ZF+ZA=1+—08 " AR
were impaired due to unexpected difficultly in collecting the [O 28t FEHAR 2 - 123,192 78T 2 ek
outstanding amounts. BRREELRE °

Other trade receivables arising from the provision of corporate R ERE RS AL = EEREE
finance services and wealth management services are due Az B EINERR - REHAREE A Al
immediately from date of billing but the Group will generally BEH - RSB —RerTHERT
grant a credit period of 30 days on average to its customers. H=1+HZEEH - REREEN KR
Trade receivables arising from the provision of stock information ERBEEZEVERZEERHAE=T
and research services are with credit term of 30 to 90 days ENTR(CZE—ZTF: =+ENTH) -

(2010: 30 to 90 days).

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables at A JE U5 BR SR S B A4S SR B 2 R AR
the reporting period: DT -
The Group
*EE
2011 2010
—F——%F —TB—2F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
0-30 days 0 £30H 118,346 289,572
31-90 days 31%290H - =
91-180 days 91%180H - =
181-365 days 181%&365H - =
Over 365 days 365H LA b - 123,192
118,346 412,764
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting NG EARA&RE - ZAEERKRARE
period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables. Other than WBE R ZERHEE - BIRBESEZE ZIEW
the amounts receivable from margin clients, the Group does not BEZRAN - NEEVWEGE EWEEZIEA
hold any collateral as security in respect of its trade receivables. (AR R /EHE R o

BEMCHEEEEERAT —T— 5455 117
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEMARTR(Z)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEREWER R 2 FRE BRI TE%S
denominated in the following currencies: (=
The Group
A5KHE
2011 2010
—F——%F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
BT VBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,485,351 6,088,855
RMB AREE 29,203 98,101
4,514,554 6,186,956
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables FEWER SR E R 2 FEERAT -
are as follows:
The Group
F50E
2011 2010
—F——%F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
&I VBT
At beginning of the year RER] 123,192 -
Receivables written off VEBE IR B FRIEM S
as uncollectible FEWEIR (123,192) —
Provision for impairment of trade FEWGRIBRE
receivables BE - 120,049
Exchange differences PN = - 3,143
At end of the year RELR - 123,192

1 1 8 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. TAfIRIE - B RHEMEKRRIE
RECEIVABLES
Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December RZTE——F+=ZA=+—8 A5H
2011 were the following amounts due from related companies: Z EMEBGRIERE TS KB EER
RIFKIA
Highest
balance

outstanding

during the
year The Group The Company
FREER
Y E 4R *5E AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g——f —T-TF —B——F —TITF
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
VST BT T T 7SI
Amounts due from related parties R EREANLTRIE :
FITHEEREBR AT (ranslterated as  RYITEERE

“Shenzhen Guangxin Investment BRAT]

Company Limited”) (“Shenzhen CRYIEED

Guangxin®) (Note (a)) (Fft3E(a)) 7,921,364  5461,704 6,454,569 - _
ERERBSFREZNEGRAR (formerly ERER

known as BB REFREEAGR BHEE

/A R)) (transliterated as “Guangdong BAARAR

Brightzone Financial Company Limited”) (ATfBI KB RBSH

(formerly known “Zhuhai Brightzone REBABRAA)

Financial Company Limited”) (TERER])

(“Guangdong Brightzone”) (Note (b)) (Fg7E(D) 182,575 39,354 110,827 - =
Directors of subsidiaries B ARES ZFIA 6,912,043 6,749,600 - —
Director of an associate NG| 1,229,830 1,180,000 - —
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR AR 2 FRIE - 1,366,115 - —
Deposit for the acquisition of intangible LU A B B 2 A5 3

asset paid to a non-controlling interests R 2 R e - 4,625,600 - —

13,642,931 20,486,711 - —
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant — UgBE¥I % - #25 5

and equipment Bl P&« - 7,826,000 - —
Other receivables H AU GRIE 14,105,249 13,457,679 - —
Other deposits and prepayments Hibig e RIBKRIE 3,101,224 14,115,797 99,577 124,428

30,849,404 55,886,187 99,577 124,428
Notes: st -
(@) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is (@) FYNEET—HRFPBKZZERAR - B
controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who is RNATEEFHFEIERE T XRALEZRER
a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company. RIEELT 5| o
(o) Guangdong Brightzone is a limited company established in the PRC and is (b) BREBR—ERIAFERERAFE - @
controlled by Shenzhen Guangxin which is a related company of the KR EIRAE R ARIIESIES] o
Company.
© The amounts due from the above related parties are unsecured, interest- (© FEl EAE BEE A TRIEREIER - 28

free, denominated in RMB and repayable on demand. AARBINERARBEREE -
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. SRITHEBRRS

The Group The Company
XEE EAT]

2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F _—_ZT-ZTF ZB——F _—TITF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ETT BT BT BT
Cash at bank and in hand WITRFERE 46,302,258 131,892,718 8,117,805 65,860,262
Maximum exposure to credit risk S &R LR 46,302,258 131,892,718 8,117,805 65,860,262

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$7,981,000 (2010: HK$11,034,000)
which are denominated in RMB. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

R-Z—F+—-A=+—H AEEA
MARBINBZETEH KRR S
#97,981,000%87L(ZF—=4F : 11,084,000
BT o A55ZE FUARE B P BRSNS B
T fte 2 INEE FIIFTER. ©

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

BRRITESKEREERFAEINE
RS ZIRTT

Bank balances and cash include the following for the purposes MR EeERERME ' SR1ITES LR

of the consolidated statement of cash flows: SBREATHFIE :
The Group
ES 3
2011 2010
—FT——F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT VBT
Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFEERE 46,302,258 131,892,718
Segregated trust bank balances B EFEER P &tk (6,652,228) (26,931,496)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEEE 39,650,030 104,961,222
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28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. FEfERTR
The Group
%
2011 2010
—F—5 —T-TF
HK$ HKS
& BT
Amounts payable arising from securities &5 4840 TSP E A
broking: FERTRRIA :
Margin clients RBESEP 761,498 501,539
Cash clients RBegP 6,683,082 28,707,947
HKSCC FemE 1,561,633 -
Other trade payables H A FETER K 80,884 184,555
9,087,097 29,394,041
Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand ENRESRPREEREREEE
and bearing interest at prevailing market rates. No aged analysis RIBITMIEH R B - ERNBAEREZS
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis BhEERZIHEE EERARRSITL
does not give additional value in view of the nature of the A FEIMBIE @ BURE R BERER DT o
business of securities margin financing.
The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from securities B AR A AP EE A RN I A E
broking are one or two trade days after the trade execution THHBE —SMETSERNIZ
date. Except for the amounts payable to margin clients as L EMRESZERIBIN - 8ARAEW
mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30 days. =+HANBE -
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28.

29.

TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 28. FEfER®R(Z)
The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the HEMENERERR SRS ARG REDT
end of each reporting period: U
The Group
A5KE
2011 2010
—F——%F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
0-30 days 0£30H 932 46,348
31-90 days 31290H - —
91-180 days 912180H - —
181-365 days 1812365H - —
Over 365 days 365H LA E 79,952 138,207
80,884 184,555

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

AEBEMARRZREENETIINE

29. H{bREMRIERERIE

The Group The Company
XEE AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —ZT-ZTF ZB——F —Z=T-TF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT HEIT BT
Amounts due to related FEFHEAAL
parties: MIE :
A director of a subsidiary WEBARES ZFIE 6,788,662 5,900,000 — —
A director of the Company AARIESZ B 50,000 1,121,248 - 233,244
Non-controlling interests IR s 2 IR 241,047 1,779,827 - =
7,079,709 8,801,075 - 233,244
Other payables and Hfth fE A< FRIE R FE T
accruals KA 5,008,529 5,335,922 1,286,387 1,403,058
12,088,238 14,136,997 1,286,387 1,636,302
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30. BORROWINGS 30. &
The Group
F&E
2011 2010
—F—5 —T-TF
HK$ HK$
&I Y5 TT
Current portion of long-term bank REAIRITIE X
borrowings mENE S
— Secured — FHEH 36,252,047 —
Notes: M3 :
(@) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (note (c)): @) 2PN T () :
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
BT I
Within one year —FR 3,190,991 —
In the second year F_F 3,287,894 —
In the third to fifth year E=mRF 10,420,418 —
Over five years HiBhE 19,352,744 —
36,252,047 _
(o) At 31 December 2011, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured (b) R-TBE——F+-_F=+—H ' K&EFET

by the charges over the Group’s entire land and buildings (Note 17) and
investment property (Note 18) and corporate guarantees executed by the
Company (Note 39). At 31 December 2011, the Group’s entire bank
borrowings are denominated in HK$, bearing floating interest rate of 2.11%
to 3.00% (2010: Nil) per annum.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreement.

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings amounting to HK$36,252,047
is shown under current liabilities since the outstanding amount is not
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period but contain
a repayment on demand clause. None of the portion of term loans due for
repayment after one year which contain repayment on demand clause and
that is classified as a current liability is expected to be settled within one
year.

BEY

EREANEE 2 A i RAEF(HE17) R
BB (M 18)1EAIER - WHAARR
A BER(MESY) - RZT—F+=A
=+—8  A&EEZFARITERHAUSET
SIE - IEBFNTEE2.11ERI00E(ZT—
TE E)ETR ©

FER £ BT B 3R o P 80 TR A2 5K A AT

s
& o
>

R RITIE SRR M R (BB 2 £ 38 IE AR R
HEER AR —FAEE - AEREES
36,252,047 B Z RITEABRARBEE
BE - WEBHTHEREPR —FE2IH
BEADEEREREERFARDEATS
BEZBAER—FRNEE -

MEEEERAT —T— —FF§
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31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 31. BEFEHERE
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is REFSRaE s ST :
as follows:
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—F——F = —TF
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
Beginning of the year FE4] - 31,456,395
Exchange differences e =58 - 471,231
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated 1k (Gt \)ér& &M
statement of comprehensive income N E 4,379,334 (31,927,626)
End of the year T 4,379,334 —
The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated EEFSHAERBINREISITE -

tax depreciation.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the ENREETETE B B S F R - W ERn
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated unused RSB SRR B A BB SR 2
tax losses available for offset against future profits due to the et A AMEERERELEHRBE
uncertainty of future profit streams. These unrecognized E o S ERERE R EREWEAARR o

temporary differences have no expiry date.

As at 31 December 2011, the unrecognized deferred tax assets RZE—F+_A=+—H A&EEH
of the Group and the Company are as follows: RARR)Z AERRERIBEENT ¢
The Group The Company
AEE EAT]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F _—_T-TF ZB——H —TITF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&I BIT BIT BT
Unused tax losses AB)AHIEEE 25,756,813 27,540,052 15,255,219 17,960,497
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32. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 32. BARiRE
Number of Ordinary Share
issued shares shares premium Total
BT
BREHE AR IR iia(E st
Note (in thousands) HKS$ HK$ HK$
FieE (FhR) BT BT BT
As at RZZ—ZF
1 January 2010 —HA—H 2,954,123 29,541,232 495,488,494 525,029,726
Issue of BRA T AT
shares through: &in
Exercise of Option in respect of Gl
acquisition of subsidiaries NEIZFERHE (i) 20,000 200,000 2,800,000 3,000,000
Issue of Consideration Shares in HUENE A A
respect of acquisition of subsidiaries BIIRERLD ) 200,000 2,000,000 166,000,000 168,000,000
Issue of Bonus Shares in respect of USRI
acquisition of subsidiaries DEIEITAR (i) 7,478 74,783 6,206,960 6,281,743
Issue of new shares for acquisition of HEEREE
intangible assets BATHR ) 9,202 92,020 1,602,980 1,695,000
Issue of new shares by ways of the BRARBEZH
Open Offer REATRG W) 638,161 6,381,607 178,684,992 185,066,599
Transaction costs BITHR D
attributable to RS
issue of new shares — — (2,424,551) (2,424,551)
Transfer upon exercise of Options T AEEN B
in respect of acquisition ARl ERE
of subsidiaries (SYEEhe — — 14,460,609 14,460,609
As at RZT—ZF
31 December 2010 +-A=t—H
and kR=ZZT——F
1 January 2011 —H—H 3,828,964 38,289,642 862,819,484 901,109,126
Issue of BRAT BT
shares through: f&tn
Issue of Consideration Shares in HUCEE L E A A
respect of acquisition of subsidiaries BARERD W) 200,000 2,000,000 166,000,000 168,000,000
As at R=F——%&
31 December 2011 +=RA=+—H 4,028,964 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 1,069,109,126

The total authorized number of ordinary share is 10,000,000,000

shares (2010:

10,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of

HK$0.01 per share (2010: HK$0.01 per share). All issued share

are fully paid.

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

VATE R 42K 10,000,000,000 f& (=
T —T 4 : 10,000,000,000 %) * FAE
BA0OIBIL(ZE—ZF : §K0.015
J0) ° FTAEEITROBRFIEHRE -

—E-—F5H
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32. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (continuea) 32. BRERi@EE)

Notes: MeE :

(0] On 19 January 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire a 0 R-E—T&—A+HH NEEIIH
software from the independent third party at a consideration of 3% AR EB AR 3,000,000 7T (FHERL
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,628,967), which was satisfied as to 3,628,967 7T ) BB E = S RSB o
RMB1,500,000 in cash and as to RMB1,500,000 by the allotment and RIEHRZ AR 1,500,000 TTABRS L -
issue of 9,201,954 shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company # T2 AR 1,500,000 7 AliE BIR I T(E
at an issue price of approximately HK$0.1842 each. The 9,201,954 shares SR 490.1842 7 TT B 2% 12 3597 9,201,954 f%
were issued on 11 March 2010. AATBAFSREEC.IEB T RG2S

XA © 9,201,964 BBMER=—F—FF=
A+—R#T-

(ii) On 29 January 2010, 200,000,000 Consideration Shares of HK$0.01 each (i) RN-E—TE—B—+hH ARZEHS
and 7,478,265 Bonus Shares of HK$0.01 each were issued to the vendor s ETIGGDEER - BHAS 53T
as contingent consideration for the acquisition of GoHi Holdings Limited 200,000,000 A% F A& E{E 0.01 /B 7T 2 (X B
due to the fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the agreements B R 7,478,265 R FIXEE 0.01 T 2 4T
(Note 35 (c)). A% » YEAUEGOH Holdings LimitedZ 5%

RE(FFE35()) °

(i) On 26 February 2010, 20,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at (i) R-ZT—T&E—A—+xH ARZEWHE
a price of HK$0.15 per share by exercise of the Option granted to the e ET IRt EER - FiE BT e
vendor as contingent consideration for the acquisition of GoHi Holdings FEH 2 ERAE  E0.15 8T 2 B3
Limited due to the fulfillment of certain conditions as stipulated in the 720,000,000 A& B A E{E 0.01 B T2 AR5
agreements (Note 35 (c)). {EAIKEEGOHI Holdings Limited 2 Sk MK

(BF3E35(c)) °

(iv) On 15 June 2010, the Company issued 638,160,686 new shares (“Offer ) R-BE—BEXA+TRER  AATIAREE
Share”) at the subscription price of HK$0.29 per Offer Share on the basis SRR 0.29 7 75317 638,160,686 %
of one Offer Share for every five existing shares in issue on 18 May 2010 R ((BERB ) BEREARR - —
(the “Open Offer”). The Open Offer was only available to shareholders TEF A+ N\ BBRITHERERMG M —RREE
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 18 By ((ARZE ) o ARBEEEEFELEIE
May 2010 and was not extended to non-qualified shareholders as defined E-E-EERA+N\BAATKESTME
in the Company’s prospectus dated 26 May 2010. BHWRETR Y EATSTEETA BRI

R W -TFRA-TRBEARAER
BRMER °

(v) On 16 May 2011, 200,000,000 Consideration Shares of HK$0.01 each W) HRBEERZSHHIB NIEEZ S TG
were issued to the vendor as contingent consideration for the acquisition (KiEE35(c)) » Bl 200,000,000 f& &A% EE
of GoHi Holdings Limited due to the fulfllment of certain conditions as 001 BT REBROHR-_ZE—FRH A+
stipulated in the agreements (Note 35 (c)). BETFEH - UEAKE GoHi Holdings

Limited 2 2k AKAE ©

The ordinary shares issued during the year have the same rights FAERTERRELMERDETR
as the other shares then in issue. NEBRFHER -
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33.

34.

—T——F+A=T—HILFE

SPECIAL RESERVE

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of First China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the corporate
reorganization undertaken in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January 2002.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) under which persons working for the interest
of the Group are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity
interest in the Company. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 17 December 2001. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the people and the parties working
for the interest of the Group with an opportunity to obtain equity
interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the
interest of the Group and thereby providing them with an
incentive to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per grant.
Options may generally be exercised at any time during a period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee provided that the
period within which the option must be exercised shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of the share option.

BEEMERKXEBFRLF

\ |

33.

34.

Y5l ke
AEBZERFEEIEARTRERE
BARRBBRONR —_EE—_F—A+—H
EBIZR EMATETT R E B AT
1 2 EE EFT Y& First China  Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited 2 21 7R% AN FEI{E M
B s EAREER 2 =58 ©

RERR T &
ARERA BT S (BRERTE )
BEOARENS TIEZ ATHH SRR
RRNTIRHE - FRIFESARRIRRESL
#E - B RIAR BB AT 8 AR E A
RST8] TR BB ARAE TS M
NEE - TEEBARR TR EITR
1780% °BRIFBB AR RPIIRELALE
BRI BB A B B AT+ — @ A
HiR - RIS 8 R AR AHEME
B E S ERE MR TEMAL
ZERERBDITERERTERR
BIETERDCEMEERTZRESR
2 NMSEBARRDETRMI% -

ARBARER -_ZTZE—F+_H++H
BBRFR - RABRESE - B
BrrgleE EMAARKENEmTIFZ AL
RUBBARBREZHE - EMAFHE
FZNmEAREEZ NenEss - A
BER/AKEZNENHEKRE S - R
EBREE  ARREEEANREE
RES(BEAARALENBARES)
R RBRE - URBARFRRL © 1o
AR B AR EINTLE =07 B B K
o UZFALANEERHEEY
SIREZER -

MBI AR KR 2 B %
M1 - B RTREF RS
RN Z IR AR - (R
e 2 77 G H0R o R B B 91T
BB -

—E-—F5H

- g A\

N\
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34.

—T——F+A=T—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continueq)

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (jiij the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years commencing on 17 December 2001.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company were granted
to certain directors and employees of the Company.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were granted to certain
directors and employees of the Company. The fair value of
84,000,000 share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme on 13 April 2010 was determined by the directors to
be HK$23,382,573 with reference to a valuation performed by
an independent firm of professional valuers using a binomial
model. The inputs into the model included grant date share
price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419 per share,
expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option life of 10 years,
no expected dividend and estimated risk-free interest rate of
2.833%.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

34.

RERxHESTEI(E)

TEEHEFSET - KTMERTI=
E2H&SER () ARBRMIEELBH
Z YT E (i) R R ERR T B AR
HERBZFHRME Kl EE -

BREE R T
FEFIRER - BET+F -

Ft+-A+tH

RZZEZLFNARHE  AARRET
BE=NEERHAIRIEA 32,400,000
REA A BIRRAD 2 BE RS HE o

R=E—ZFFNA+=H " ARXAFET
EEREE KL AR 4 $£84,000,0008%
RRRIRD 2 BB - EFLEHBUE
¥AEME AR ERENXETZE
BEERE R_Z—ZFNA+=RIRE
%h%#%&ﬁZ&omomP%k%Z
NFA{E 523,382,5738 7T ° EEBEN 25
AZEEERE B2 REAR0.4HTT
TEBAERK0.4198 T « TREIKIE A
103.41% - TEERME AR HAMR 2104 - TR S
1% 8 A REHER R T X £2.833% °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. MBRRHESEI(E)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TEREBEHE T ——F+_A=+—
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year B I F SR R e =1 2 pr i o B R e
ended 31 December 2011: > B
Number of share options
FRENE
Outstanding as Outstanding as
Exercise at 1 January Exercised during Lapsed during  at 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2011 the year the year 2011
Ro¥——% R-T——%
-A-H +ZA=+-H
RENEHE RHEH T friEsmE HRITE FRTE ERER RITE
Mr. Wang Wenming (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
ENREL(RITES) %5 0.419%ET —F-TEMA+=HE
mA+=H —E-FEMA+ZH
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
FRAFEE(PITES) —%-%5 0419%% —F-FFNA+=HE
mA+=H —¥-TEMA+ZA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 5 September 2007  HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
FRALE(RITES) = 02158 —FFtEAAZBE
AAER —2—tFAANA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non-executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
BIRAEE (FRTES) -2-%5 0.419%ET —F-TEMA+ZHE
mA+=8 Z¥-¥5MA+=H
Dr. Tsang Hing Lun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 3,186,158 - (3,186,158) -
(independent non-executive director)
SERET(BIENTES) —¥-%5 0.419%ET —F-TFMA+T=HE
mA+=ZH —¥-%5MA+ZA
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive director)
REERR(BILENTES) —%-%5 0419%% —F-FFMNA+=HE
mA+=H —¥-TFMNA+ZA
Sub-total for directors 84,964,200 - (3,186,158) 81,778,042
2t
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
=&RE —%-%F 0.419%ET —F-TFMA+T=HE
mA+=ZH —¥-%5MA+ZA
1 employee 5 September 2007  HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—&&8 Z2%tE 02158 —FEtEAALBRE
ABEH —F-tERAME
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
RN
Total 93,991,647 - (3,186,158) 90,805,489
At
Weight average exercise price 0.409 - 0.419 0.408
T TIE(E

EEDEREEBERAT —T— —F5R 129
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. [BRRiESTEI(E)
The following table discloses the movements of the share ~REBREE_T—ZTF+-_HA=+—H
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year IEFERBERERTZIFTHE B RE L
ended 31 December 2010: 2
Number of share options
S A
Exercise price
(After adjustment Outstanding Adjustment in Outstanding as
in respect of the as at Exercised Granted  respect of the at
Open Offer 1 January during the during the Open Offer  Lapsed during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant (Note 32)) Exercisable period 2010 year year (Note 32) the year 2010
BRAREEZ RZZ-TF BRAREE RZZ-—%
BOBEIRE —A-A ZHE +tZA=1+-H
ARG g =p (W5k32)  ffEHAm HATTE FATE FARH (Rt3E32) FRRM WALTIE
Mr. Wang Wenming (executive 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 - - 11,000,000 682,577 - 11,682,577
director)
IXREE(HTES) —T-TH 0.419%7T
mA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 = = 30,000,000 1,861,575 = 31,861,575
TR EBITES) —2-% 041987 FMA+=RZ
mMA+=H “T-TEMA+CA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (executive director) 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,000,000 - - 248,210 - 4,248,210
TRNAEGMTESR) 2 2 0.21587C EHFNALRE
NAEH “E—tFNAMA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non-executive 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 = = 30,000,000 1,861,575 = 31,861,575
director)
ABREL(FRITES) —Z-TF 0.419%7T g
mA+=8 “Z-TEMA+CA
Dr. Tsang Hing Lun (independent 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 = = 3,000,000 186,158 — 3,186,158
non-executive director)
SRR (BUEIES) —E%F 041987 FRMA+T=RZE
mA+=H “Z-TFNA+CH
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 = = 2,000,000 124,105 = 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
RAEHER(BUFHNTES) —T-3F 041987 —Z-TFNAT=AZ
mA+=H FMA+=H
Sub-total for directors 4,000,000 = 76,000,000 4,964,200 = 84,964,200
BRIt
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 = = 8,000,000 496,421 = 8,496,421
=%EE —2-% 04198 —ZE-TFNAT=AZ
mMA+=H TENA+=H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 500,000 — — 31,026 = 531,026
—%EE 2 2 0215870
NARHE
Sub-total for employees 500,000 - 8,000,000 527,447 - 9,027,447
EE/NGH
Total 4,500,000 = 84,000,000 5,491,647 = 93,991,647
5t
Weight average exercise price 0.215 = 0.419 0.409 = 0.409
IETHTEE

1 SO First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, MERxtESEI(E)
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had 90,805,489 (2010: RZE—F+HA=+—08  ~R2FA
93,991,647) share options outstanding for the share options 90,805,489 10 (= ZF—= 4 : 93,991,647
granted under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of )RR EARERT SR 2 AR B RTT
the remaining share options would, under the present capital - RIBARRRBRITEALRETE - Wik
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 90,805,489 TZBREERETE - S BBEEIINET
(2010: 93,991,647) additional ordinary shares of the Company 90,805,489 I (=L —Z 4 : 93,991,647
and additional share capital of HK$908,055 (2010: HK$939,916) )R RQRIERAR - A REEBEINRAE
and share premium of HK$36,164,481 (2010: HK$37,467,620). 908,055 BTL(ZF—FF : 939,916/8

TC) RN % (B 36,164,481 B (ZF—
T4 : 37,467,620/87T) °

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 35. EBEHH
(@) Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen All (@) HEHFIAFIREHBIFRATZ
Win Investment Consultancy Company Limited i
On 15 April 2011, the Group acquired an additional 49% Eﬁfz——illflﬂ +HAB - NEE
interests in a subsidiary FEIINBRREZABREA i"%ﬁﬁ% FNNBIHLEZRE
(formerly known as “RIIBEHBEREER A ) T(Hlﬁ&}f/ I EESER A
(transliterated as Shenzhen All Win Investment Consultancy ﬁﬁ@ﬁJMQ% #Eawm o REAARK
Company Limited) at a cash consideration of RMB1 1TT(REER1BTT) o

(equivalent to HK$1).

(b) Acquisition of Qingdao First China Financial (b) WEEEEEMREEERARAT
Information Company Limited
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill were as BAMBIEFEERE ZFIBW
follows: s ¢
HK$
BTT
Total purchase consideration satisfied by cash Fif IR & AU BB K (B 240,720
Fair value of net assets acquired — BAFEEZAFE —
shown as below BT (159,348)
Goodwill (Note 19) P2 (FsE19) 81,372

EEDEREEBERAT —T— —F5R 131
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. ¥EBEHE)
(b) Acquisition of Qingdao First China Financial (b) WEEESHEMEEERRAT

132

Information Company Limited (continued)
The assets and liabilities as of 3 June 2010 arising from
the acquisition were as follows:

( f‘ﬁ)

R-ZE—ZFNA=H BkEE

Fﬁ%iZﬁE&EE%@@J&DT :

Acquiree’s

Fair value  carrying amount

WU 2

~TE RMEE

HK$ HK$

BIT BIT

Property, plant and equipment Yz - R MR - 53,106

Other receivables E A e M RIE 29,558 29,558

Bank balances and cash RITEERR N IR ® 282,889 282,889

Net assets BEFAE 312,447 365,553
Non-controlling interests FERE A (153,099)
Fair value of net assets acquired BABEFEATE 159,348

SEBEWKEEAR AR (transliterated as Qingdao First
China Financial Information Company Limited) did not
contribute any revenue but net loss of HK$178,708 to the
Group for the period from 3 June 2010 to 31 December
2010. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2010,
total group revenue for the year ended 31 December
2010 would have been HK$48,989,233 and loss for the
year would have been HK$218,766,026. This pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition occurred on 1 January 2010, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.
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SEEEVLERERATTER
AEBEREMBA - BR=ZF
TENAZHE-_ZT—ZTF+_4
=t+—HBHHE - AREESRER
SFEE A 178,708 87T o M3 £
R-_ZT—ZTF—F—H #HE-Z
—f¢+—ﬂ2+—atiﬁ PiN
Bl 1AL %58 548,089,233/ T
ﬁﬁﬁmﬁiﬂaﬂ‘lﬁjms,?%,oz&%
TC o WWEHEEEREHEGRRR

A—ERTHEER —F—FF—
H— BT T3FE ETRAIRRE
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. EZEaH(E)

(c)

Acquisition of the GoHi Group

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Aceview International
Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement dated
11 July 2007 (as amended by a supplemental agreement
dated 30 July 2007) with Fame Treasure Limited (the
“Seller”) and Mr. Wang Wenming (the “Warrantor”), in
relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of GoHi Holdings Limited. GoHi Holdings Limited and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, First China Securities
Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (collectively, the “GoHi
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of stock
information and research services in the PRC.

Pursuant to the agreements, the consideration for the
acquisition is contingent on, inter alia, specified levels of
net profits being achieved by the GoHi Group in future
periods and was to be satisfied in the following manner:

(i) Issue of 200,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) at each of the next three anniversary dates
after completion, subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions as stipulated in the agreements.

(ii) Grant of an option (the “Option”) to the Warrantor to
subscribe for a maximum of 60,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Option Shares”) at an exercise price of HK$0.15
per Option Share, in which 20,000,000 Option
Shares are exercisable at each of the next three
anniversary dates after completion, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
agreements.

BEEMERKXEBFRLF

()

K EEGoHiEE
REE-_ZZT+F+-A=+—H
IEFER KA REZEHBA
AR ERAREEESRA
AI(TE R ) R E XL E(ER
)\J)WﬁzﬁﬁeoHi Holdings Limited
2HEBTRATZAHAE-ZZ
titﬂ+ Az E& Wz (&R
HAE—TZLtF+A=THZHT
W&EEE]) e GoHi Holdings
Limited 2 E2 & B AR B EES
A ORI B IR 2R (45 GoHi
S8 )2 EEXZB RN ERER
EEANERS

REZEF - WERERT (R
1 E235) GoHi S BN AR R A ZE R

R MR - LHRIA
TAR%A :

() REXRBRR=ZBFESEE
w B 83317 200,000,000 f%
AR FIRAH SRR EE 0.01
Bzl H ([RER
m])  EGZEWEE]
B TIREEERZ - FA{E

o

i}

\;
/!

iy MERARLDAITEESR
BB RS MER% 19 0.15 B JT R BE i
% 60,000,000 Bz A A &) fE A
FREZIREE0.01 BT 23X
7 ([BEIRRENR 1 )) < B P e
([HEResE ) - WA R TERK 18
R =AF S EEREHTT
{#E R 20,000,000 A& BE A% 42
f& (D - EBFZE BRI
%?M#%LW& 73 A

m

\

2 —FER
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35. EBZEHE)

134

(c)

Acquisition of the GoHi Group (continued)

@iy~ Issue of a maximum of 160,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Bonus Shares”) at each of the next three
anniversary dates after completion, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the
agreements. The actual number of Bonus Shares to
be issued for each period, if any, would be based
on the excess of the actual net profits being
achieved by the GoHi Group in future periods over
the net profit guarantee given by the Seller and the
Warrantor and the Company’s share prices in future
periods.

Completion of the aforesaid acquisition took place on 16
November 2007. The fair value of the Consideration
Shares to be issued was based on the published price of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 16 November 2007. The fair value of the Option had
been included in the cost of combination at the time of
initially accounting for the combination to the extent the
adjustment to the cost of combination was considered
probable, and such fair value was estimated by reference
to an independent professional valuation which
incorporated an option pricing model with annual risk free
rate of 2.67%, volatility of 106.67%, dividend yield of 0%
and other parameters according to the terms of the
agreements. The fair value of the Bonus Shares to be
issued had not been included in the cost of the
combination at the time of initially accounting for the
combination as it could not be measured reliably.
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()

K EEGoHiEE ()

@iy MEABRK=ZBFEEE
w B B % TR %
160,000,000 & A2 &) & 248
R R EE 0.01 /& 7T 2 A%
(4R ]) - WRFZE T
AR A TR EKE -
FAEE - S EEMETZ
AREREE (E)RE
GoHi & B AR 2R EARI 8215 2
B A FIEE L E 2 AR
B EBRUARERAREA
AIRARREAM 2 REBETE -

P ER - EELFE+— N
HEMK - §ETRERBZAF
B BERBEAQDBRMR=-ZZt
F+— A+ NBEFTATIRREE
T BREZATEERVIEEE
BEFARRTAGOKA - EE
BIRRAB I REBIEL AR - ZEA
FEBZ2E—HBLEEGER
i RS AREEERN - 8
FERARENEK2 67 E - Kig
106.67% * BB K 0% Rk E M %
EFIEE 228 - ARBEITZA
B2 AFERERI AT E - R
TR RETSA HEABRB I EAGHET A
AP o
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMRBAT
(@ On 1 March 2011, the Group disposed of its entire equity @ RZZE—F=A—H KEE
interest in FRIIEEREZRBRLELERART (ransliterated HERE 4,811,160 THEHR

FINEERERRERLRERARLZ
S EPR AR -

as First China Convoy Insurance Broker Company Limited,
Shenzhen) at a cash consideration of HK$4,811,160.

The assets and liabilities of this disposed subsidiary at the

date of disposal were as follow:

mw

ﬁ’%ﬁﬁ% BAIRNHERSZEE
SEEET NN

Carrying amount

BREE

HK$

T

Property, plant and equipment Vs - IR R 94,869

Other receivables H b U T IE 548,179

Trade receivables JEYBRETR 1,469

Bank balances and cash RITRERR NI 493,605

Other payables H b RIR (88,914)

Net assets BEFHE 1,049,208

Non-controlling interests Eealiig T (209,842)

839,366

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBAR Z W= 3,971,794

Total cash consideration IR RE 4,811,160
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZBRERNTFHE :

Total cash consideration WIS R(E 4,811,160

Bank balances and cash disposal BEHERITEAREIRE (493,605)

4,317,555

The result of this disposed subsidiary had no significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss for

the year ended 31 December 2011.

BEEMERKXEEERLE =T —FFH

EHEMBRR 2 XEHAKEE
E-T——Ft+-A=1+—HLF
BZHGRERBABERLBEAY

288

Z= o

I
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMBARE)

(b) On 27 May 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity ) RZZE—ZFRA=-F++tH &%
interest in First China Futures Limited at a cash BLARERE10,714,4668 L HE
consideration of HK$10,714,466. HEREGHHHERR AR Z2IPIA

s o
The assets and liabilities of this disposed subsidiary at the ZHENBARNEE AR EE
date of disposal were as follow: E=E=LUNNE

Carrying amount

EREE
HK$
BIT
Property, plant and equipment VI - R R 28,730
Intangible assets mEE 1
Statutory deposit and other assets EEE® MEMEE 1,500,000
Other receivables HoAh pE Y SRIE 17,164
Trade receivables FEMAR SR 19,663,744
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 7,365,602
Segregated trust bank balances BYEARP AR 1,268,350
Trade payables FEITBRFR (20,596,126)
Other payables HAbFET SRR (7,000)
Net assets BEFRE 9,240,465
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REHBAR 2z W 1,474,001
Total cash consideration IR RE 10,714,466
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESMAFE
Total cash consideration RIS RE 10,714,466
Bank balances and cash disposal, excluding BHERITERKIES
segregated trust bank balances (P BEREBELEERP &) (7,365,602)
3,348,864
The result of this disposed subsidiary had no significant BHEMBRRZXEHAEEE
impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss for E_Z-EF+_A=+—HIHF
the year ended 31 December 2010. E

ZEBEXBABRLEEAY

Y
=

&=

I
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(©)

On 2 June 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity © RZZE—ZFAZH KAEEK
interest in B EENLEEBRAF
Hunan First China Financial Information Company Limited)
at a cash consideration of HK$637,947.

The assets and liabilities of this disposed subsidiary at the
date of disposal were as follow:

(transliterated as

36. HEMBASE)

RS o

MEEWT

ISR (B 637,947 7 7T H & H A
BEEFEEEARARZ 2

HZHENBARINLERMZEE

Carrying amount

AREE

HK$

BIT

Property, plant and equipment VI - R R 19,062

Trade receivables FEUAR SR 14,979

Other receivables E A e Y GRIE 149,840

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 1,288

Other payables HE A eI FRIE (94,492)

Net assets BEFEE 90,677

Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A (45,018)

45,659

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RfEBAR 2z W 592,288

Total cash consideration RIS R(E 637,947
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSMAFE

Total cash consideration B S RE 637,947

Bank balances and cash disposal BHERITERKIAS (1,288)

636,659

The result of this disposed subsidiary had no significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

= =

o A el
z%ﬂ—\lﬂ =

o

I Y (O

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

HEHBR Rz EEHAEEE
= E+—_A=+—HItF
EHEEETESERY

—E-—F5H

N\
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMRBAIE)

(d  On 9 March 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity ) RZZE—Z=F=RANA  ~XEBEMN
interest in EREHEX(EEERAE at a cash RS R(E 11,498,900/ 7T HEER
consideration of HK$11,498,900. IEREELEERER AR S

MR AN HE S o

ZHENBATNEERRZ BE
MEEWT

The assets and liabilities of this disposed subsidiary at the
date of disposal were as follow:

Carrying amount

138

AREE
HK$
BIT
Property, plant and equipment VI - R R 7,973
Other receivables HAtb EUGRIA 143,737
Bank balances and cash RITHER IR S 11,279,581
Other payables E A eI FRIE (28,067)
Net assets BEFHE 11,403,224
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XMBA Rz s 95,676
Total cash consideration IR (E 11,498,900
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRSMAGEE
Total cash consideration IS RIE 11,498,900
Bank balances and cash disposal BHERITERERS (11,279,581)
219,319
The result of this disposed subsidiary had no significant BHEHB AT Y EEYAREFEE
impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss for T TE+—HA=+—HItFE
the year ended 31 December 2010. B MR EIR T EE A
488

On 9 March 2010, the Group disposed of its partial equity
interests in RN EERARRELBR AT (transliterated
as First China Convoy Insurance Broker Company Limited,
Shenzhen) at a cash consideration of RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,180,000). Such disposal did not result
in the Group’s losing control over this subsidiary and was
accounted for as equity transactions.
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R-Z—ZTF=ZANE  KNEEI
HEREAR1,000,0007T(HE
71,180,000/ 7T ) B EEN R E
ERRRBELER AR
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M AR 2 EHIRE - WIERAEZR
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EES

37.

38.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

WARRANTS RESERVE

On 29 December 2011, the Company entered into a placing
agreement to place and issue an aggregate of 800,000,000
warrants on 29 December 2011. The holders of the warrants
shall have the right to subscribe for 800,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.124 per share within 3 years from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had 800,000,000
warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of the warrants would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 800,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$8,000,000 and share
premium of HK$91,200,000.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of rented premises as follows:

37.

38.

R IEE A
RZFE——F+ZA=Z+NA  ARF
SIVRERFEUIRN —_E——FE+ - f
T+ BEEE KE1T4 £ 800,000,000 15 72
IRHEE - RIREFRFBABERETH
B=F RV RIBESTR0.124 BT
BN /2 A]800,000,000/% % {7 ©

R=F—F+=-A=1+—H AQaH
800,000,000@&55&«7@5 RHERE o EZK
RNABRTZRALERET - RIREE &
HITE - B2 QEJZE%éEﬁSOO,ooo,ooo
AREESNED - ABIR A A0 (B 5 Bl
118,000,000/ 7T 291,200,000/ 7T °

EERARIE
RZF——F+-A=1t—8 " X&E
RENAHELEHORERYEEN
ZARR A REREFIFATENT

The Group
AEHE
2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-THF
HK$ HK$
&I 7SI
No later than one year —FR 2,858,312 2,116,103
Later than one year and no later than —F%E &

five years AENRN 68,125 -
2,926,437 2,116,103

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of two (2010: three) years.

BEEMERKXEBTRLF

HANAEYME 2 P THIEE RMF

(ZF—

TE :=F) -

—E-—F5H

NEN

N\

139



sad i B LGRS MRS A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMFERFTME

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EES

38.

140

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group had future minimum rental
payments receivable under certain non-cancellable leases as
follows:

38.

FERENREE)
R=_ZF—F+_A=+—H ' A£H
EETAAIFHEBE T ZRREKRAS
xRS :

The Group
xEH
2011 2010
—F——% —EFF
HK$ HKS
&I YT
No later than one year —FR 851,200 —
Later than one year and no later than —%F%& K&

five years AFENR - —
851,200 —

The Group leases its investment property (Note 18) under
operating lease arrangement which runs for an initial period of
two years, without an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits.

The Company did not have significant operating lease
commitments at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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39.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

|
)

39. EXHRAEALRS

- g A\

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere BRI E N BRREMEGHEE LIRS
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the MEESRIN - REBRFRNFIZATER
following significant related party transactions during the year: BHEBEALRS :
The Group
xEH
2011 2010
—FT——%5 —E-TF
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT o
Brokerage commission income BEFWEHELASRA
received from directors (i) 11,816 15,600
Advertising services income MATEGKEES
received from ARFSUA (ii)
— an associate — —XKEERQT] - 84,862
— Guangdong Brightzone — BRIER 1,025,034 =
Consultancy fee income received A& SR IH R ULER
from Guangdong Brightzone EEAEBA (ii) 2,190,231 —
Consultancy fee paid to a MR EERE
subsidiary of Shenzhen BRAFIZ—R
Guangxin Investment Company ) PNCIE )
Limited B (i) - 689,934
Office rentals paid to Shenzhen S FFRIITERS
Guangxin Investment Company KEBRRAIZ
Limited WAEHRS (i 252,586 885,415
Office rentals paid to closely family SZftEE—ZFFH 2
member of a director WAEHE (i 976,194 —
Sales agency fee paid to YNERERZ
Guangdong Brightzone HEREE (i) 178,266 —
Sales of software to an associate A — KB & A 7 5 & Bl (ii) 10,825,110 =

BEEMERKXEEERLE =T —FFH

N\
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39. EXHREALRZS(E)

(continued)
2011 2010
—T—%5 —E-TF
HK$ HKS$
#ET o
Key management compensation FEFEAB ZH
— Salaries and other short-term — ¥ REAMEE
employee benefits EEWRA 3,411,766 25,638,055
— Post-employment benefits — EARRER 36,000 36,000
3,447,766 25,674,055

Notes:

(i

The commission rates were substantially in line with those normally offered
by the Group to third party clients. As at 31 December 2011, the
outstanding balances with these related parties amounted to HK$3,442
(2010: amounts receivables of HK$8,500) in aggregate, which were
included in the amounts payables to cash clients and margin clients arising
from securities broking (Note 28) (2010: amounts receivables from margin
clients arising from securities broking). The amounts due were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one or two trade days after the trade
execution date.

The advertising services income, consultancy fee income, consultancy fee
expenses, office rentals and sales of software were based on terms agreed
between the parties involved.

On 26 March 2011, Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC) entered into an agreement with
Guangdong Brightzone pursuant to which Guangdong Brightzone has
agreed to provide a platform to Wealth Alliance, and be responsible for,
the sales and marketing of the stock investment analysis software and
software packages developed and owned by the Group and, in return,
Guangdong Brightzone is entitled to receive a sales agency fee from
Wealth Alliance subject to and upon the terms contained in the agreement
(the “Sales Agency Agreement”). Guangdong Brightzone is owned as to
88.75% by Shenzhen Guangxin and 11.25% by independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin is controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who is a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company and is therefore an associate of a connected
person of the Company as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Accordingly, the transactions
between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong Brightzone as contemplated
under the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

i

(il

(i)

AeWRBAB LEAEE—RAE=FEF
BEHERT RZT——F+_A=+—
B BpSAEEEATERZAEEREHE
HE3,442B (=T —FF : BWRFIEA
8,50077T) * T ABH AL ERFELE 2 AT
ReeBPRRBFLEF KB (HiE28)
(ZZ—ZTF  BARELEBEEZEURR
FELEPHE) BHEANEAEERR 28
RARKR B —skMER S A REE -

BEERBUA - EHERA -~ BREH
MAEMRS RRMEHEEDREFBETHE

ZIGREEE

R-ZE——F=A=1+X~B  EBH(KAF
FERERY 22 EWBRAR) BERERT
TR Bt EREREREREBRET
BURBEHEREHASERERESZ
BERESTREREHESR - MERER
AR =B RESHE RERS/ERBIR -
MBS ek ([ SHE R ) TSGR TR
B BERIBEABIBEFINEERBLE=H
#HE88.75% K 11.25% = ©

RYIEEHRLEL L Z - REEBERLR
RARBEEHRITERREXALEZRE
Bt BERRIBEALZHEACEER
BIZERFE S EMARRI(TEIZAR LR A D) -
FEit - RIFRIZER LR EHEERERE
FERRBHEREHRET IR HBERAR
A FERER S -




sl B LGRS REGES A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& & M5 W R M

G

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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39.

40.

T ——F+A=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$57,130,000 (2010: HK$23,000,000) to a bank in respect of
general banking facility granted to three of its subsidiaries.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, such facility was not
utilized by the subsidiaries (2010: Nil). In the opinion of the
directors, no material liabilities will arise from the above
corporate guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of
business and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted by
the Company is immaterial.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting
period but not yet incurred is as follows:

\ |

39.

40.

i

EXHREANLRXS(E)

AARERBEFER=ZRWNEBRARZ—
ERITIEEMERITIER 57,180,000 % 7T
—F—F4F : 23,000,000/87T) Z A A
R REE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—
HIEFE - ZMBARWEE RS ER
B(ZZ—ZTF :\) - EERA ' KA
BEBHFLZ FMARERTEES
EREE BARRFBREHAAERZ
AFEITTEK °

BEEFiE
RBEIR - ARAZETHERRE
2 BARSERIIOT

& AN

The Group
F5%E
2011 2010
—F—F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Property, plant and equipment Y3 - R MR E - 70,434,000
BENKRZEEEFRAE —T——FFx%

N\
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BMEEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements is set out below:

A ERIRTNEEERRAMBRR AL
BBREREMBEEREANEERAGERE
I

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—B1¥$E

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B——F —"TZF "TThF ZTN\F ZETLF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
I BIT BIT BIT o
(As restated)
(&%)
RESULTS E
Revenue Wz 12,686,091 48,989,233 85,320,229 72,155,034 44,050,196
(Loss)/profit before BRETSE A
income tax (E518) S%F  (34,727,222) (250,567,434) 10,699,895 (619,865,676) (23,318,083)
Income tax FriSHi
expense/(credit) X (E%) (4,702,505) 31,927,626 (7,654,821)  (6,410,352)  (1,349,477)
(Loss)/profit for FR(ER),
the year i)l (39,429,727) (218,639,808) 3,045,074 (626,276,028) (24,667,560)
Attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company ANAFHEA A (37,855,857) (215,332,026) 3,404,795 (626,262,225) (24,655,055)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFEAS##E2S (1,573,870)  (3,307,782) (359,721) (13,803 (12,505)
(39,429,727) (218,639,808) 3,045,074 (626,276,028) (24,667,560)
As at 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HIFE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
=F——8 —TI=TF —ZTTNF ZEZENF —ZTTLF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
I BIT BIT BIT o
(As restated)
(&%)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES  &&E
AND NON- BER
CONTROLLING FEdE= R
INTERESTS i
Total assets BERE 195,251,602 215,767,840 336,728,989 173,262,594 673,835,146
Total liabilities BfERRE (61,807,003) (43,531,038) (173,836,780) (17,491,784) (47,408,434)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFER% e 3,557,730  (2,889,7006) (664,922) (71,693) (85,496)
137,002,329 169,347,096 162,227,287 155,699,117 626,341,216
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